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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 201.
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 333-162168

InspireMD, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 26-212383¢
(State or other jurisdiction « (LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organizatiol Identification No.)

3 Menorat Hamaor St.
Tel Aviv, Israel 67448
(Address of principal executive offices)
(Zip Code)

972-3-691-7691
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area fode

Indicate by check mark whether registrant (1) filasl &ll reports required to be filed by Sectiondt3L5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefildsuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayssX¥l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liéssnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted fumtsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of dtiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). ¥ds No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of “large acceleratedfifaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting coany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file™ Accelerated fileO

Non-accelerated file Smaller reporting comparlxl
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgfe Act). Yedd No

The number of shares of the registrant’'s commocks$0.001 par value, outstanding as of August 03,1264,278,947
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands)
June 30, December 31
2011 2010
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8,07( $ 63€
Restricted cas 343 25C
Accounts receivable
Trade 614 852
Other 18k 75
Prepaid expense 71 3
Inventory:
On hanc 1,471 1,70¢
On consignment 82 371
Total current assets 10,83¢ 3,891
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT , net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization 304 282
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Deferred debt issuance co 8 15
Funds in respect of employees rights upon retirei 19¢ 167
Total other non-current assets 203 182
Total assets $ 11,34 $ 4,35¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of lor-term loans $ 26¢ $ 35E
Accounts payable and accrua
Trade 763 1,10z
Other 2,344 1,50¢
Advanced payment from custome 544 55¢
Loans from shareholde 20
Deferred revenue 39¢
Total current liabilities 3,91¢ 3,94/
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long term loar 75
Liability for employees rights upon retireme 264 20¢€
Convertible loan 1,044
Total long-term liabilities 264 1,32¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  (note 9)
Total liabilities 4,18: 5,26¢
EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)
Common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 128)00Ghares authorized; 64,185,16
shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 20149%863,801 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2( 6 5
Additional paic-in capital 33,27¢ 21,05%
Accumulated defici (26,125 (21,976
Total equity (capital deficiency 7,16( (914
Total liabilities and equity (capital deficiency) $ 11,348 $ 4,35¢

Table of Content

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)

Table of Content

REVENUES $
COST OF REVENUES

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and developmt
Selling and marketin
General and administrati\

Total operating expenses

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
FINANCIAL EXPENSES (INCOME), net

LOSS BEFORE TAX EXPENSES
TAX EXPENSES

NET LOSS $

NET LOSS PER SHARE- basic and dilute $

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF
ORDINARY SHARES USED IN
COMPUTING NET LOSS PER SHARE

(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except per share data)

6 months endec 3 months endec Year ended

June 30 June 30 December 31
2011 2010 2011 2010 2010

2,72¢ $ 3,008 $ 1,04C % 90¢ $ 4,94¢
1,53¢ 1,81¢ 64C 47¢ 2,69¢
1,181 1,18¢ 40C 42¢ 2,257
1,09 773 75C 372 1,33¢
1,04¢ 637 617 304 1,23¢
2,391 1,112 1,20¢ 442 2,89¢
4.52¢ 2,52 2,57 1,11¢ 5,47:
(3,342 (1,339 (2,172 (689) (3,219
787 29 72 (41) 154
(4,129 (1,367) (2,24 (64¢) (3,379
20 30 10 15 47
(4,149 % (1,399 $ (2,259 $ (663) $ (3,420
(0.0 $ (0.0 $ (0.0 $ (0.0)) $ (0.07)
57,312,94 48,860,55 63,934,26' 49,113,46 49,234,52

- basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CAPIT AL DEFICIENCY)
(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

Ordinary shares

Total equity
Number of Additional paid-  Accumulated (capital
shares Par value in capital deficit deficiency)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2011 49,863,80 $ 5 $ 21,057 $ (21,97¢) $ (9149
CHANGES DURING 6 MONTHS OF 2011:
Net loss (4,149 (4,149
Employee and non-employee share-
based compensatic 2,99¢ 2,99¢
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $
issuance cos! 802,86¢ * 80t 80t
Issuance of ordinary shares and warrants, n
$2,835 issuance cos 12,992,26 1 7,65: 7,65¢
Conversion of convertible loans 526,22! * 76€ 76€
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2011 64,185,16 $ 6 $ 33,27¢ $ (26,12 $ 7,16(
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2010 48,338,38 $ 5 $ 17,21 $ (18,55¢) $ (1,339
CHANGES DURING 6 MONTHS OF 2010:
Net loss (2,399 (2,399
Employee and n-employee sha-basec
compensatiol 69C 69C
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $25 issu
costs 1,152,08! * 1,39¢ 1,394
BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2010 49,490,46 $ 5 19,29¢ $ (19,949 $ (647)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2010 48,338,38  $ 5 $ 17,21 $ (18,55¢) $ (1,339
CHANGES DURING 2010:
Net loss (3,420 (3,420
Employee and nc-employee sha-basec
compensatiol 1,64( 1,64(
Issuance of warrants, net of $23 issuance ¢ 424 424
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of $97 issu
costs 1,525,42. * 1,781 1,781
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 49,863,80 $ 5 $ 21,057 $ (21,970 $ (914

* Represents an amount less than $1,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.




INSPIREMD, INC.

(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)
(U.S. dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss

Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to ash
used in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortization of property, pland aquipmen
Loss from sale of property, plant and equipm
Change in liability for employees right upon retirent
Financial expense
Shar+based compensation expen
Loss (Gains) on amounts funded in respect of enaa

rights upon retirement, n
Changes in operating asset and liability ite

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expel
Decrease in trade receivab
Decrease (increase) in other receival
Decrease in inventory on consignm
Decrease (increase) in inventory on h
Increase (decrease) in trade paya
Decrease in deferred reveni
Increase (decrease) in other pay:

and advance payment from custon

Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢

Purchase of property, plant and equipn

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipi

Amounts funded in respect of employee rights upiineraent

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of shares and warrantef &t014 issuance cost
for the six months ended June 30, 2011, $25 issuensts for the six
months ended June 30, 2010 and $78 issuance costefyear ended
December 31, 201

Repayment of convertible lo¢

Repayment of long term loz

Proceeds from convertible loan at fair value thfopgpfit or loss, net of $¢
issuance cos!

Repayment of loans from shareholders

Net cash provided by financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF THE PERIOD

Table of Content

6 months endec Year ended
June 30 December 31
2011 2010 2010

$ 4,149 % (1,399 $ (3,420
38 49 91

15
70 12 42
64¢ 84 94
97¢ 69C 1,62(
3 1 (11)
(68) (50 36
23¢€ 1,251 337
(203) (43) 9
28¢ 774 722
232 33 (758)
(340) (377 19¢
(39¢) (1,677 (1,577
75¢ (561) (91)
(1,78€) (1,224) (2,710
(93 47 52
(42) (48) (81)

29
(38 25 (A7)
(144) 24 (46)
10,56¢ 1,31« 2,24

(1,000
(18¢) (99) (281)
1,07:

(20)
9,35¢ 1,22( 3,037
8 (26) (22
7,43¢ (6) 26C
63€ 37¢€ 37¢€
$ 8,07C % 37  $ 63€

(*) During the 6 months ended June 30, 2011, convelttlans in the amount of $668 thousand were cdadento Company share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements.




Table of Content

INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

InspireMD, Inc., formerly Saguaro Resources, Itiee (Company”), a public company, is a Delawarepooation formed on February
29, 2008. On March 28, 2011, the Company chantgethime to InspireMD, Inc.

On December 29, 2010, the Company entered intamseItxchange Agreement (the “Exchange Agreemegtdrid among the
Company and InspireMD Ltd., a limited company irpmmated under the laws of the State of Israel inlR®05. Subsequent to the date of
execution of the Exchange Agreement, shareholddrspireMD Ltd., holding 91.7% of InspireMD Ltd.issued and outstanding ordinary
shares, executed a joinder to the Exchange Agreesnenbecame parties thereto (the “InspireMD Staldeis”). Pursuant to the Exchange
Agreement, on March 31, 2011, the InspireMD Shddsre transferred all of their ordinary sharesrnigpireMD Ltd. to the Company in
exchange for 46,471,907 newly issued shares of amstock of the Company (the “Initial Share Exclelig In addition, the remaining
holders of InspireMD Ltd.’s ordinary shares sepalsatransferred all of their ordinary shares ofpinsMD Ltd. to the Company, in exchange
for an aggregate of 4,194,756 newly issued shdresromon stock of the Company (the “Follow Up Shiakehange” and, together with the
Initial Share Exchange, the “Share Exchange”).aAssult of the Share Exchange, InspireMD Ltd. bexa wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The Share Exchange is being accounted for as eseevecapitalization, equivalent to the issuanc&tadk by InspireMD Ltd., for the
net monetary assets of the Company. Accordingly historical financial statements of the Compagflect the historical operations and
financial statements of InspireMD Ltd.

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, isealical device company focusing on the developmedtcammercialization of its
proprietary stent platform technology, MGuard™. &#Bd™ provides embolic protection in stenting pchaes by placing a micron mesh
sleeve over a stent. The Company'’s initial proglace marketed for use in patients with acute @mosyndromes, notably acute myocardial
infarction (heart attack) and saphenous vein g@fbnary interventions (bypass surgery). The Compaarkets its products through
distributers in international markets, mainly inrgjpe and Latin America.

In addition, the Company operates in Germany thindtggwholly-owned subsidiary InspireMD GmbH, a @an limited liability
company incorporated in November 2007, where tha@2my subcontracts the manufacturing of its stents.

The Company believes that it has sufficient castotttinue its operations into 2013. However, dejpanon the operating results in
2011 and 2012, the Company may need to obtainiadditcash in 2013 to continue to fund operations.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidetaxdial statements have been prepared on the lsasieas the annual
consolidated financial statements, included inGoeenpany’s June 15, 2011 registration statemenbon 5-1. In the opinion of management,
the financial statements reflect all adjustmentsictvinclude only normal recurring adjustments,assary to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the Compdimese consolidated financial statements and nbegstb are unaudited and should be read in
conjunction with the InspireMD Ltd’s audited finaakstatements for the year ended December 31,. ZUi®balance sheet for December 31,
2010 was derived from InspireMD Ltd's audited fioi@h statements for the year ended December 31). Z01e results of operations for the six
months ended June 30, 2011 are not necessarilyaiigk of results that could be expected for thegefiscal year.




Table of Content

INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 3 - RECENTLY ADOPTED AND ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRO NOUNCMENTS

In October 2009, the FASB issued amendments ta¢beunting and disclosure for revenue recognifidrese amendments, effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15,@@arly adoption is permitted), modify the crigefor recognizing revenue in multiple element
arrangements and require companies to developt@&stisate of the selling price to separate dedibbss and allocate arrangement
consideration using the relative selling price rdthAdditionally, the amendments eliminate thedeal method for allocating arrangement
considerations. The adoption of the new guidandendt have a material impact on the Company's dilaged financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued amended guidance autbdure requirements for fair value measurementese changes will be
effective January 1, 2012 on a prospective basidyBpplication is not permitted. These amendmargsnot expected to have a material
impact to the consolidated financial results.

NOTE 4 - FACTORING OF RECEIVABLES

During the six month period ended June 30, 2018 (tbmpany entered into a factoring agreement armautdg $1.2 million with a
certain banking institution on a noeeourse basis. The factoring of trade receivalnheter this agreement is accounted for as a sabeler the
terms of this factoring agreement, the Companysfeas ownership of eligible trade receivables with@course to the banking institution in
exchange for cash. Proceeds on the transfer réffledace value of the account less a discouhe discount, amounting to $12 thousand
during the six months period ended June 30, 20tdcisrded to “financial expenses - net” within @endensed Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

The receivables sold pursuant to this factoringagrent are excluded from trade receivables on timeléhsed Consolidated Balance
Sheets and are reflected as cash provided by apgeattivities on the Condensed Consolidated Stamesnof Cash Flows. The banking
institution has no recourse to the Company'’s ageefsilure of debtors to pay when due.

The related commissions on the sales of tradevaligis sold under these factoring agreements amnguo $22 thousand were
recorded to “financial expenses - net” within then@ensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 5 - CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS:

During the first quarter of 2011 and prior to thecBange Agreement, InspireMD Ltd. raised approxétya$990,000 and issued
approximately 803,000 ordinary shares through peiydacements.

During the first quarter of 2011 and prior to thecBange Agreement, InspireMD Ltd. granted 600,264ksoptions to employees and
consultants at a cash exercise price of $1.23I@es The options had terms of four to ten years.

On January 4, 2011, the Company entered into asctihke loan agreement with its distributer in Eréhe “Lender”), in the amount
of $100,000 subject to the following conditions:

e the convertible loan does not bear annual inte

e in the event of a share exchange or similar tramsaahe Lender shall have, at its sole discretibe option to convert the loan ir
either (i) shares of the Company's common stoekpatce of $1.23 per share ($10 as relates toradpb), or (ii) the Company's
product at a price of 400 euro per unit (which esgnts the market price for the Lender); in thenetheat the Company does not close
a share exchange or similar transaction by Ju@é11, the Lender shall have the right to extenddaha and its terms for up to an
additional 6 months (as noted in Note 1 the Exchalgreement was closed on March 31, 2011);

e in no event shall the loan be repaid by the Comp
On June 1, 2011 the lender surrendered $100,00@aonvertible loan in exchange for 81,161 shafe®mmon stock.

On February 20, 2011, the Company received a taxying from the Israeli tax authorities accordiogsection 103 of the Israeli tax
law, with regards to the share exchange of the Gmyip shares and options. According to the taxylieg, the shares and options exchange
will not result in an immediate tax event for then@pany's shareholders, but a deferred tax evepjecuo certain conditions as stipulated in
the tax pre-ruling. The main condition of the par-ruling is a restriction on the exchanged shfresvo years from December 31, 2010 for
share holders holding over of 5%.

In March 2011, the Company granted a new fixed ¢ie§40,000 to Bank Mizrahi.

Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement described ia Nabove, the Company assumed all of InspireMD4d.tibligations under
InspireMD Ltd.’s outstanding stock options. Immegdly prior to the Share Exchange, InspireMD Ll loutstanding stock options to
purchase an aggregate of 937,256 shares of itsasgdshares, which outstanding options became mptm purchase an aggregate of 7,606,770
shares of common stock of the Company after gieiifigct to the Share Exchange. In addition, threa-yvarrants to purchase up to 125,000
ordinary shares of InspireMD at an exercise pricgl® per share were assumed by the Company aneted into warrants to purchase
1,014,500 shares of the Company’s common stock akarcise price of $1.23 per share.

In connection with the closing of the Exchange Agmnent, the Company sold 6,454,002 shares of itsrammstock at a purchase pr
of $1.50 per share and five-year warrants to pusehgp to 3,226,999 shares of common stock at aciegerice of $1.80 per share in a private
placement to accredited investors (the “Private@eent”). As part of the Private Placement, cefttaiiders of the 8% convertible debentures,
in an aggregate principal amount of $1,580,000 ‘@r&lge Notes”), surrendered $667,596 of outstagdrincipal and interest due under such
Bridge Notes in exchange for 445,064 shares of comstock and warrants to purchase an aggregatsg532 shares of common stock (the
“Debt Conversions”). The number of shares of commstock and warrants issued in connection with thbtBConversions are included in the
aggregate figures for the Private Placement. Assalt, the Company received aggregate cash prooé&ds013,404 in the Private
Placement. In addition, as a result of the Debiv@gcsions, there was $1,000,000 of unpaid prin@pédtanding under the Bridge Notes, wt
was repaid by the Company in May 2011.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 5 - CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS (continued):

In connection with the Private Placement, the Camggzaid placement agent fees of approximately 8lDand issued five-year
warrants to purchase 373,740 shares of our comiock at an exercise price of $1.80 per share. fainealue of the warrant is $212,000.

In connection with the Exchange Agreement, the Camyralso entered into a stock escrow agreementogitiain stockholders,
pursuant to which these stockholders depositedb]6@2 shares of common stock held by them intoo@scFhese shares will be released tc
Company for cancellation or surrender to an emtigignated by the Company should the Company h&@erfillion in consolidated revenue,
as certified by the Company’s independent auditbusing the first 12 months following the closinfjtibe Private Placement, yet fail, after a
good faith effort, to have the Company’s commorelstapproved for listing on a national securitiesteange. On the other hand, should the
Company fail to record at least $10 million in colidated revenue during the first 12 months follogvthe closing of the Private Placement or
have its common stock listed on a national se@srigixchange within 12 months following the closinghe Private Placement, these escrowed
shares shall be released back to the stockholders.

The shares of the Company’s common stock issuditetinspireMD shareholders in connection with tixetiange Agreement and the
shares of common stock issued to the investotsairiPtivate Placement were not registered undeBelcarities Act of 1933, as
amended. These securities may not be offeredidiirsthe U.S. absent registration or an applicaxemption from the registration
requirements. Certificates representing theseesh@ontain a legend stating the restrictions agplécto such shares.

On March 31, 2011, the Company issued certain dtamgs five-year warrants to purchase up to aneggge of 2,500,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $1.50 peresimaconsideration for consulting services relatmghe equity raising transaction, which
warrants have a fair value of $1,500,000. The egpe related to the issuance of the warrants eoeded as share-based compensation and
treated as issuance costs.

On April 18, 2011, the Company issued 666,667 shafés common stock and five-year warrants tapase 333,333 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of(bfie8 share, for an aggregate purchase price 608000 in a private placement.

On April 18, 2011, the Company issued 283,334 shafés common stock and five-year term warraotsurchase 141,667 shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise pri&l @0 per share, for an aggregate purchase pri42%,000 in a private placement.

In connection with the private placements consurethan April 18, 2011, the Company paid placemeehaéees of approximately
$471,000 which was recorded as issuance costs\angidar term warrants to purchase 57,000 shardb@fCompany common stock at an
exercise price of $1.80 per share. The fair vafubase warrants amounting to $67,000 is estimag#ag the Black-Scholes valuation model.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 5 - CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS (continued):

On April 21, 2011, the Company issued 33,333 shafrés common stock, and five-year term warraotpurchase 16,667 shares of
the Company’s common stock at an exercise pri&l @0 per share, for an aggregate purchase pri$8®000 in a private placement.

During the six months period ended June 30, 201 Company entered into investor relations comsyligreements (the “Consulting
Agreements”) with investor relationship companie (‘Advisors”) to provide financial advisory seres and other investment banking
services. Pursuant to the Consulting Agreememtgddition to monthly fees in a range of $3,0005,800, the Company will issue to the
Advisors:

e aoneyear warrant to purchase 81,161 shares of comnoak sf the Company at an exercise price of $1.23pare, valued :
$21,000;

e 50,000 restricted shares of the Comf’s common stock, valued at $62,000; a five-year warrant to purchase 50,000 share
common stock of the Company at an exercise prigl &0 per share, valued at $30,C

e 25,000 shares of the Compi's common stock, valued at $68,7

The Company recorded share-based compensationsegen$181,750 related to these issuances, dilmngix months period ended
June 30, 2011.

During the three months period ended June 30, #84 Company granted 1,087,225 stock options to @yepls and consultants at
cash exercise prices of $1.23-$2.75 per share.optiens had terms of five years.

NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT:

The Company measures fair value and disclosegdhie measurements for financial assets and liegsiliFair value is based on the
price that would be received to sell an asset @t fpetransfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market participants at the
measurement date.

The accounting standard establishes a fair valeiidhy that prioritizes observable and unobseevidguts used to measure fair ve
into three broad levels, which are described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active miarkigat are accessible at the measurement daésdets or liabilities. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1utg

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inmttguoted on active markets, but corroboratethbyket data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when littta@market data is available. The fair value higmg gives the lowest priority to
Level 3 inputs.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 6 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued):

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesuatlon techniques that maximize the use of obséaviaputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs to the extent possible amdiders counterparty credit risk in its assessrogfdir value.

The Convertible loan was recorded at a fair valu#10044 as of December 31, 2010, then subsequentigasured at fair value with
the increase in fair value of $624 included in @@nsolidated Statements of Operations as of Mat¢l2@11. This security was measured at
fair value on a recurring basis and classifiechm tSignificant Unobservable inputs (Level 3)" catsy.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalaot®unts receivable, accounts payable and othemexttiabilities approximate
their fair value either because these amountsrasepted at fair value or due to the relativelyrsterm maturities of such instruments. The
carrying amount of the Group's other financial ldegn assets and other financial long-term lialb#itapproximate their fair value.

NOTE 7 - INVENTORY ON HAND:

June 30 December 31
2011 2010
(% in thousands)
Finished good $ 31¢ $ 957
Work in proces! 1,04¢ 573
Raw materials and suppli 104 174
$ 1,471 $ 1,70¢

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In July 2010, the Company'’s board of directors appd new employment agreements for the Compangsitent and CEO. The
agreements were approved at the Company’s shaskatteeting in March 2011, and are effective fropnilAL, 2011.

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
Commitment

In March 2010, the Company entered into a licemgeament to use a stent design (“MGuard Primelsiant to the agreement, the
licensor is entitled to receive royalty payment§#f of net sales outside the United States andidies within the United States, royalty
payments as follows: 7% of net sales for the $t€2,000,000 of net sales and 10% of net salesdfosales exceeding $10,000,000. The
Company began manufacturing the MGuard Prime dutiadast quarter of 2010 and began selling the M@ ®rime in the first quarter of
2011.

10




Table of Content

INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  (continued):
Litigation

The Company is a party to various claims arisintheordinary course of its operations in the aggtre amount of $30,000. The
Company has not recorded an expense related togggnraconnection with these matters because maradeafter consultation with its lec
counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate resotuof these claims will not result in a loss be tCompany.

In March 2009, a service provider submitted a clagminst the Company in the amount of $150,008érMagistrate’s Court in Tel
Aviv, claiming a success fee for assistance intlaggootential investors and lenders with respe@ toan agreement entered into with a
bank. On April 11, 2011, the Company received @ttauling directing the Company to pay the senpeevider an amount of $105,000. Since
both parties had claims against the court rulihgytrenegotiated and on June 5, 2011 signed arsettt agreement according to which the
Company shall pay $96,000 and shall issue 18,788man shares. The Company has recorded a prow$i$®6,000 in the financial
statements in 2011 and share based compensatgiii @f00. The related expense has been record&eteeral and administrative” within the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In November 2010, a former senior employee subthételaim against the Company in the total amoa#80,000 and options to
purchase 2,029,025 shares of the Company at anisxgrice of $0.001 per share in the Magistrafedart in Tel Aviv, claiming unpaid back
wages and commissions. The fair value of thos@pptwas valued using the Black-Scholes valuatiodehat $2.5 million as of the period he
claimed to be entitled to the options. The Compéaged upon the opinion of its legal counsel, basnded a provision of $20,000 in the
financial statements.

In November 2010, an alleged former founder andllagvisor of the Company submitted a claim agahmsiCompany for options to
purchase 496,056 shares of the Company at an segnice of $0.001 per share in the Magistrate'srGa Tel Aviv. The fair value of those
options was valued using the Black-Scholes valnatiodel at $178 thousand as of the grant date. Cbimepany, based upon the opinion of its
legal counsel, has recorded a share-based comjpensapense of $134,000 allocated to the year eBdma@mber 31, 2006, in respect of
services allegedly provided in 2005 and 2006.

In November 2010, a former legal advisor of the @any submitted a claim against the Company in theuat of $53,000 in the
Magistrate’s Court in Tel Aviv, claiming a breachterms of employment. The Company, based upompigon of its legal counsel has
recorded a provision of $53,000 allocated to ther yeded December 31, 2006.

In February 2011, a finder submitted a claim agaims Company in the amount of $327,000 in the Miagie's Court in Tel Aviv,
claiming a future success fee and commission feistsce in finding the Company's distributer imBk The Company, based upon the
opinion of its legal counsel, has recorded a promisf $327,000 in the financial statements infitet quarter of 2011. The related expense
been recorded to “General and administrative” withie Condensed Consolidated Statements of Opesatio

In February 2011, representatives of a third peudycated that they intend to seek damages fronCthrapany in connection with
certain finders’ fees that they claim are owechent. The claimants’ most recent settlement demaodjeyed in April 2011, was for a total of
$250,000 in cash and 250,000 shares of the comganynon stock. To date no lawsuit has been filekle Tompany has not accrued an
expense in connection with this matter as managemerently is of the opinion that the resolutidrtlis matter will not result in a loss to the
Company .
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 10 - TAXES ON INCOME
Amendment of the Law for the Encouragement of Capdl Investments, 1959

The Law for Encouragement of Capital Investmer@§9l(the “Law”) was amended as part of the Econdpoiicy Law for the years
2011-2012, which was passed in the Knesset (thellgrarliament) on December 29, 2010 (the “amemdiherhe amendment became

effective January 1, 2011.

The amendment sets alternative benefit tracksg@ites currently in place under the provisionsefltaw, as follows: investment
grants track designed for enterprises located iomal development zone A and two new tax bendfitsks (preferred enterprise and a special
preferred enterprise), which provide for applicataf a unified tax rate to all preferred incomehsd company, as defined in the amendment.

The tax rates at company level, under the Law:

Development Other Areas in
Years Zone A Israel

"Preferred enterprise
2011-2012 10% 15%
201:-2014 7% 12.5%
2015 and thereaftt 6% 12%
"Special Preferred Enterpris

commencing 201 5% 8%

The benefits granted to the preferred enterprisédevunlimited in time, unlike the benefits gradtto special preferred enterprises,
which will be limited for a period of 10 years. Thenefits shall be granted to companies that widllifly under criteria set in the amendment;
for the most part, those criteria are similar te thiteria that were set in the law prior to itsesmdment.

Under the transitional provisions of the amendmarmipmpany will be allowed to continue and enjay tdx benefits available under
the Law prior to its amendment until the end of peeiod of benefits, as defined in the Law. The pany will be allowed to set the "year of
election"” no later than tax year 2012, provided tha minimum qualifying investment commenced ¢t than the end of 2010. On each:
during the period of benefits, the company willdide to opt for application of the amendment, thgmmaking available to itself the tax rate:
above. A company may not revoke it election forlaggion of the Amendment.

In accordance with income taxes (Topic 740) thesueament of current and deferred tax liabilitied assets is based on provision
the enacted tax law at balance sheet date. Thedam@ent was "enacted” at the first quarter of 201d did not have an impact on the compa
consolidated financial statements.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(UNAUDITED)
NOTE 11 - ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURE
The Company operates in one reportable segment.

Disaggregated financial data is provided belowodisws:

(1) Revenues by geographic area and
(2) Revenues from principal customers.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas bastha docation of the customers. The following suamary of revenues by
geographic areas:

6 months endec 3 months endec Year ended
June 30 June 30 December 3
2011 2010 2011 2010 2010
(% in thousands)

Israel $ 358 % - % 305 $ 37 $ 11¢
Spain 29C 18¢€ 14¢€ 66 34z
Germany 12€ 39 85 21 15C
India 1,08: - - - -
Brazil 10€& 36C 10€& 36C 277
Poland 74 1,44¢ 18 76 1,44¢
Other 69C 974 37¢ 34¢ 2,61
$ 2,72¢ % 3,008 % 1,04C % 90¢€ $ 4,94¢

By principal customers:

6 months endec 3 months endec Year ended
June 30 June 30 December 3!
2011 2010 2011 2010 2010
($ in thousands)

Customer A 13% - 29% 4% 2%
Customer E 11% 6% 14% 7% 7%
Customer C 5% 1% 8% 2% 3%

Customer C 40% - - - -
Customer E 4% 12% 10% 40% 6%
Customer F 3% 48% 2% 8% 29%

All tangible long lived assets are located in Irae

13




Table of Content

INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 11, 2011, the Board appointed a new diregith a term expiring at the Company’s 2012 anmaekting of stockholders. In
connection with his appointment, the director weented an option to purchase 1,000,000 sharesedftimpany’s common stock (“Common
Stock”) at an exercise price of $1.50 per share. djption is exercisable from the date of grantexmires on September 30, 2011. In addition,
in connection with his appointment, the directoswa@anted an option to purchase 500,000 sharesmfr®n Stock at an exercise price of
$2.50 per share, the closing price of the Commogksbdn the date of grant, subject to the termscamdlitions of the 2011 U.S. Equity
Incentive Plan, a sub-plan of the Company’s 20M &ption Plan approved on March 28, 2011 (“2011 Wetid Option Plan”). This option
vests and becomes exercisable in two equal annstalliments beginning on the one-year annivershtiyeodate of grant, provided that in the
event that the director is either (i) not reeleasd director at the Company’s 2012 annual meefisgpckholders, or (ii) not nominated for
reelection as a director at the Company’s 2012 alrmeeting of stockholders, the option vests armbimes exercisable on the date of the
director fails to be reelected or nominated. ThiSan has a term of 10 years from the date of grdie aggregate fair value of the options
granted to the above-mentioned new director is@pprately $1,600,000.

On August 5, 2011, the Board appointed a new direeffective as of August 8, 2011. The directoswappointed for a term expiring
at the Company’s 2012 annual meeting of stockheld&he director was granted an option to purci@8¢000 shares of Common Stock at an
exercise price of $1.95 per share, the closingeprfdche Common Stock on the date of grant, subgetite terms and conditions of the 2011
U.S. Equity Incentive Plan, a sub-plan of the Cony®2011 Umbrella Option Plan. The option vestd bacome exercisable in two equal
annual installments beginning on the one-year amsary of the date of grant and expires ten years the date of grant. In the event that the
director is either (i) not reelected as a direetiothe Company’s 2012 annual meeting of stockhel|dsar(ii) not nominated for reelection as a
director at the Company’s 2012 annual meetingadlgiolders, the option vests and becomes exereisablhe date of the director’s failure to
be reelected or nominated.

On August 5, 2011, the Board appointed anotherdiesctor, effective as of August 8, 2011. The diveevas appointed for a term
expiring at the Company’s 2013 annual meeting @fldtolders. The director was granted an optigoutechase 25,000 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $1.95 per shareclt®ng price of the Common Stock on the date ahgrsubject to the 2006 Employee Stock
Option Plan, a sub-plan of the Company’s 2011 Ultdb@ption Plan. The option vests and become esabdé¢ in two equal annual
installments beginning on the one-year anniversétiie date of grant and expires ten years fromd#te of grant. In the event that the director
is required to resign from the Board due to medieakons, the option vests and becomes exercisalttes date of the directartesignation fc
medical reasons.

In addition, on August 5, 2011, the Board approtredgrant of options to purchase 486,966 shar€oofmon Stock to former
directors at a cash exercise price of $1.23 peaeshbhe options replaced comparable options helthd former directors that had expired
during the second quarter of 2011. The optionsteads of five years.

On July 20, 2011 Mizrahi Tefahot Bank approvedréiease of the fixed lien in the amount of $30Qugand. Following the approval,
$300 thousand of Restricted Cash will be classifie€Cash and Cash Equivalents.
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INSPIREMD, INC.
(FORMERLY SAGUARO RESOURCES, INC.)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  (continued)
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS(continued)
In August 2011, a former senior employee submitbeithe Regional Labor Court in Tel Aviv a claim &g the Company for (i) a

compensation of $118,000; (ii) declaratory rulihgtthe is entitled to exercise 486,966 optionsuteipase InspireMD, Inc's shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $0.001 per optioterAdonsulting with counsel, the Company is unablassess the outcome of this claim.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should kad in conjunction with the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statgs and related notes included elsewhere inQbisrterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Unless the context requires otherwise, referencélis Form 10-Q to the “Company,” “InspireMD,” “wg “our” and “us” for
periods prior to the closing of the share exchaogeMarch 31, 2011 refer to InspireMD Ltd., a prigbt held Israeli limited company that
now our wholly-owned subsidiary, and referenceth&é“Company,” “InspireMD,” “we,” “our” and “us” fo r periods subsequent to the
closing of the share exchange on March 31, 201féy te InspireMD, Inc., a Delaware corporation, aitd subsidiaries.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking stateménighich include information relating to future ews, future financial
performance, strategies, expectations, competinéronment and regulation. Words such as “mayhbtdd,” “could,” “would,” “predicts,”
“potential,” “continue,” “expects,” “anticipates;future,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimage” and similar expressions, as well as
statements in future tense, identify forward-logkgtatements. Forward-looking statements shouldb@oead as a guarantee of future
performance or results and will probably not beuaate indications of when such performance or tesull be achieved. Forward-looking
statements are based on information we have witese thtatements are made or our management'’s gitlothédief as of that time with respect
to future events, and are subject to risks andnteniogies that could cause actual performance sulteto differ materially from those expres
in or suggested by the forward-looking statemehigportant factors that could cause such differsricelude, but are not limited to:

« adverse economic conditions and/or intense coniqetit

o loss of a key customer or suppli

« entry of new competitors and produc

- adverse federal, state and local government ragnlah the U.S., Europe or Israel;

» failure to adequately protect our intellectual pdp;

« inadequate capital;

« technological obsolescence of our produ

- technical problems with our research and products;

» price increases for supplies and compone

« inability to carry out research, development anchiceercialization plans;

« loss or retirement of key executives and reseasigmtists and other specific risks;

« the uncertainty regarding the adequacy of our dijyiito pursue our complete business objectived;
- aproduct recall or voluntary market withdrawal dogroduct defects or product enhancements andficetbns.

You should review carefully “Part 1l — Item 1A. Ri§actors” of this Form 10-Q for a discussion af¢t and other risks that relate to
our business and investing in shares of our comstaek.

Overview
We are a medical device company focusing on theldpment and commercialization of our proprietagnsplatform technology,
MGuard™. MGuard™ provides embolic protection ierging procedures by placing a micron mesh slegee & stent. Our initial products

are marketed for use mainly in patients with acaenary syndromes, notably acute myocardial itifamgheart attack) and saphenous vein
graft coronary interventions (bypass surgery).
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On March 31, 2011, we completed a series of sharieamge transactions pursuant to which we acquailiesf the capital stock of
InspireMD Ltd., a company formed under the lawshef State of Israel, in exchange for an aggredd®®,666,663 shares of our common
stock. As a result of these share exchange traoeagctnspireMD Ltd. became our wholly-owned sulzsigl we discontinued our former
business and succeeded to the business of InspitaM@s our sole line of business.

The share exchange transactions are being accolontas a recapitalization. InspireMD Ltd. is #equirer for accounting purposes
and we are the acquired company. Accordinglyhil®rical financial statements presented and ibeudsion of financial condition and res
of operations herein are those of InspireMD Ltetraactively restated for, and giving effect ta titumber of shares received in the share
exchange transactions, and do not include therfgatdinancial results of our former business.eTdtcumulated earnings of InspireMD Ltd.
were also carried forward after the share exchémagesactions and earnings per share have beeactualy restated to give effect to the
recapitalization for all periods presented. Operstreported for periods prior to the share exgkamansactions are those of InspireMD Ltd.

Critical Accounting Policies
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make estismand assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liasl#éind disclosure of contingent assets and ligsili#t the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of sales and expenses dlwengporting periods. Actual results could diffemh those estimates.

As applicable to these consolidated financial statets, the most significant estimates and assunmgptiate to revenue recognition
including provision for returns, legal contingerscend estimation of the fair value of share-basedpensation and convertible debt.

Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environmenwiich our operations are conducted is the UnitadeS dollar (“$” or
“dollar”). Accordingly, the functional currency of and of our subsidiaries is the dollar.

The dollar figures are determined as follows: teations and balances originally denominated inadlslare presented in their original
amounts. Balances in foreign currencies are t@é@dlinto dollars using historical and current exaje rates for non-monetary and monetary
balances, respectively. The resulting translat@ingor losses are recorded as financial inconexpense, as appropriate. For transactions
reflected in the statements of operations in foreigrrencies, the exchange rates at transacti@s da¢ used. Depreciation and changes in
inventories and other changes deriving from non-gtemy items are based on historical exchange rates.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is defined as the price that would loeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgibin an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

In determining fair value, we use various valua@mproaches, including market, income and/or gmgtaaches. Hierarchy for inputs
is used in measuring fair value that maximizesute of observable inputs and minimizes the useobservable inputs by requiring that the
most observable inputs be used when available. e®able inputs are inputs that market participardald use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on market data obtained from s®imdependent of us. Unobservable inputs are $nihiait reflect our assumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgitire asset or liability developed based on théih&smation available in the
circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down intee levels based on the reliability of inputs.

Concentration of credit risk and allowance for dotfbl accounts

Financial instruments that may potentially subjeto a concentration of credit risk consist ofcassh equivalents and restricted
cash which are deposited in major financial intititus in Germany and Israel, and trade accountsvable. Our trade accounts receivable are
derived from revenues earned from customers fromows countries. We perform ongoing credit evabret of our customers’ financial
condition and, generally, require no collaterahirour customers. We also have a credit insuraalieygfor some of our customers. We
maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts redgliwdased upon the expected ability to collectt®munts receivable. We review our
allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly by assgsiedividual accounts receivable and all othdahees based on historical collection
experience and an economic risk assessment. dietegmine that a specific customer is unable totiteé&nancial obligations to us, we
provide an allowance for credit losses to redueerditeivable to the amount our management reasohaléves will be collected. To mitigate
risks, we deposit cash and cash equivalents with tiiedit quality financial institutions. Provig®for doubtful debts are netted against
“Accounts receivable-trade.”
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Inventory

Inventories include finished goods, work in procasd raw materials. Inventories are stated alotlver of cost (cost is determined on
a “first-in, first-out” basis) or market value. lemntories are stated at the lower of cost or mafet.inventories generally have a limited shelf
life and are subject to impairment as they apprdheh expiration dates. We regularly evaluatedteying value of our inventories and when,
in our opinion, factors indicate that impairmens lvecurred, we establish a reserve against tha@tores’ carrying value. Our determination
that a valuation reserve might be required, intaldito the quantification of such reserve, regsius to utilize significant judgment. Although
we make every effort to ensure the accuracy oédasts of future product demand, any significaaintinipated decreases in demand could
have a material impact on the carrying value afiouentories and reported operating results. Tte,daventory adjustments have not been
material. In respect to inventory on consignmeag “Revenue recognition” below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when delivery has occurrdderce of an arrangement exists, title and risicsrawards for the products are
transferred to the customer, collection is reasiynassured and when product returns can be reliegdtijnated. When product returns can be
reliably estimated a provision is recorded, basedistorical experience, and deducted from salks.rovision for sales returns and related
costs are included in “Accounts payable and acsru@ther” under “current liabilities”, and “Inveary on consignment”, respectively.

When returns cannot be reliably estimated, botkemaes and related direct costs are eliminatedeaproducts are deemed
unsold. Accordingly, both related revenues andscae deferred, and presented under “Deferrechtmg® and “Inventory on consignment”,
respectively.

We recognize revenue net of value added tax (VAT).

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are charged ttatkenent of operations as incurred.
Share-based compensation

Employee option awards are classified as equityrdsvand accounted for using the grant-date fauwevatethod. The fair value of
share-based awards is estimated using the Blacgk&chaluation model, which is expensed over theisite service period, net of estimated
forfeitures. We estimate forfeitures based orohisal experience and anticipated future conditions

We elected to recognize compensation expensedvards with only service conditions that have gradesting schedules using the
accelerated multiple option approach.

We account for equity instruments issued to thadypservice providers (non-employees) by recordiegfair value of the options
granted using an option pricing model, at eachntépmpperiod, until rewards are vested in full. eléxpense is recognized over the vesting
period using the accelerated multiple option apghnoalhe expense relates to options granted td fdrty service providers with respect to
successful investor introductions that are recortdtieir fair value in equity, as issuance costs.

Uncertain income tax positions

We follow a two-step approach to recognizing an@soging uncertain income tax positions. The fitep is to evaluate the income
tax position for recognition by determining if theight of available evidence indicates that it @renlikely than not that the position will be
sustained on audit. The second step is to med#seiiacome tax benefit as the largest amount thatdre than 50% and 75%, respectively,
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlemeBuch liabilities are classified as loterm, unless the liability is expected to be resdlwithin
twelve months from the balance sheet date. Oucyp to include interest and penalties relatedrtcecognized tax benefits within financial
expenses.
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Results of Operations
Three Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to hiheeTMonths Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues For the three months ended June 30, 2011, r®tahue increased approximately $0.1 million, ab% to approximately
$1.0 million from approximately $0.9 million duriribe same period in 2010. Our revenue is compns&idly of two components, gross
revenue less net deferred revenue. Gross reveragrial to the dollar value of shipments actualydento customers. This amount is offset by
net deferred revenue. Revenue’s is recognized whbvery has occurred, evidence of an arrangemests, title and risks and rewards of the
products are transferred to the customer, colladigeasonably assured and when product retumbeaeliably estimated. When product
returns can be reliably estimated, a provisiortorded based on historical experience, and dedifrctm sales. Since we only commenced
selling products in 2008, revenue derived from stapts in the past has not been immediately recednRather, such amounts have been
recognized as deferred revenue on our balance. sBemte the estimated time period for returns @sphe deferred revenue is removed from
the balance sheet and recognized as revenue statanent of operations. On a going forward b#sésmajority of shipments will be
immediately recognized as revenue. The followmgn explanation of the approximately $0.1 milliocrease in revenue broken down by its
main two components, an increase in gross revehappsoximately $0.3 million and a net decreasddferred revenue of approximately $0.2
million.

For the three months ended June 30, 2011, totabgewvenue increased by approximately $0.3 million73.5%, to approximately
$0.7 million from approximately $0.4 million durinibe same period in 2010. The increase in grossweyis primarily due to approximately
$0.1 million of first time sales to our distributiorthe Netherlands, approximately $0.1 millionrudreased gross revenue from our distribut
Israel, approximately $0.1 million of increasedggoevenue from our distributor in Germany, angraximately $0.1 million of increased
gross revenue from our distributor in Argentindsef by approximately $0.1 million less gross rexe@from our distributor in Poland and
approximately $0.1 million less gross revenue fraum distributor in Italy. We also shipped and mguiaed gross revenue for approximately
$0.1 million more from our remaining distributonsrihg the three months ended June 30, 2011, asameuhpo the same period in 2010.

For the three months ended June 30, 2011, we memmhnet deferred revenue of approximately $018anj as compared to
approximately $0.5 million in the correspondingipdrin 2010. The decrease of approximately $0.I8aniis attributable to approximately
$0.3 million less deferred revenue recognized feales made in Brazil offset by approximately a $8ilfion increase in deferred revenue
from sales made in Israel. We also recognizedrdfeevenue for approximately $0.1 million lessnfrour remaining distributors during the
three months ended June 30, 2011, as compared saithe period in 2010.

Gross Profit. For the three months ended June 30, 2011, grofis (revenue less cost of revenues) decreaspabgimately 6.8%, or
approximately $30,000, to approximately $0.4 millfoom approximately $0.43 million during the sapggiod in 2010. Gross margin
decreased to 38.5% for the three months ended3yrgd11, from 47.2% during the same time periogl0h0. For the three months ended
June 30, 2011, our average selling price per sémagnized in revenue was $566, and we recognieeddle of 1,836 stents, compared to an
average price of $590 per stent and 1,538 steotginézed in revenue for the same period in 2010r Poduction cost per stent increased f
an average of $311 per stent recognized in reviarube three months ended June 30, 2010 to armgeaf $349 per stent for the same period
in 2011. The costs per stent, in addition to raatarials, includes salary expenses denominatedSn Nor the three months ended June 30,
2011, there was an increase in labor costs pet. stdre increase was due to share based compengatimg the current period and an
approximately 10% appreciation of the NIS agaihstW.S. dollar in the current period versus theesgsriod in the prior year.

Research and Development Expens®r the three months ended June 30, 2011,ndsaead development expense increased 10
to approximately $0.8 million, from approximatel.8 million during the same period in 2010. The@ase in cost resulted primarily from
approximately $0.5 million higher clinical trial penses, attributable mainly to our FDA clinicahtifapproximately $0.4 million) and our
Master Trial (approximately $0.1 million), offsey pproximately $0.1 million lower share based cengation expense. Research and
development expense as a percentage of reven@asgsat to 72.1% in 2011 from 41.0% in 2010.

Selling and Marketing ExpenseFor the three months ended June 30, 2011, gellid marketing expense increased 103.0% to
approximately $0.6 million, from approximately $0r8llion during the same period in 2010. The irase in cost resulted primarily from
approximately $0.2 million of additional salarieaelated expenses of newly hired sales pers@sek expand our sales activities
worldwide and approximately $0.1 million of addital share base compensation. Selling and markekipgnse as a percentage of revenue
increased to 59.3% in 2011 from 33.5% in 2010.
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General and Administrative Expenséor the three months ended June 30, 2011, dearetadministrative expense increased 17:
to approximately $1.2 million from $0.4 million dng the same period in 2010. The increase in @sstlted primarily from an increase in
investor related activities of approximately $0.®ion, an increase in legal and litigation expes@pproximately $0.15 million, an increase
in salary expense of approximately $0.1 millionjrarease of approximately $0.1 million in travepenses, an increase of approximately $0.1
million in accounting fees, and an increase of apipnately $0.1 in miscellaneous expenses. Gem@dladministrative expense as a
percentage of revenue increased to 115.9% in 2011 48.7% in 2010.

Financial Expenses/IncomeFor the three months ended June 30, 2011, wéiteattial expense of approximately $72,000, corad
to approximately $41,000 of financial income durthg same period in 2010. The increase in finaripknse resulted primarily from the
favorable impact of exchange rate differencesHerthree months ended June 30, 2011 that did ootwe during the three months ended June
30, 2011. Financial expense as a percentage afiuewsas 6.9% in 2011, compared to financial incofm&5% in 2010.

Tax Expenses Tax expense remained relatively flat at $10,fa0@he three months ended June 30, 2011 as cewmhpau$l5,000
during the same period in 2010. Our expenses famire taxes reflect primarily the tax liability dieepotential tax exposure.

Net Loss Our net loss increased approximately $1.6 mmijlior 240.0%, to approximately $2.3 million for tteee months ended
June 30, 2011 from approximately $0.7 million dgrthe same period in 2010. The increase in netrexsdted primarily from an increase in
operating expenses of approximately $1.5 milli@e(above for explanations) and an increase of appately $0.1 million in financial
expenses (see above for explanation).

Backlog. Our order backlog as of June 30, 2011 was ajpaiely $0.9 million.
Six Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to thM&mnths Ended June 30, 2010

Revenues For the six months ended June 30, 2011, totaimee decreased approximately $0.3 million, or 9.8&pproximately
$2.7 million from approximately $3.0 million durinibe same period in 2010. The following is an arption of the approximately $0.3 milli
decrease in revenue broken down by its main twopoorants, a net decrease in deferred revenue obxppately $1.4 million and an increase
in gross revenue of approximately $1.15 million.

For the six months ended June 30, 2011, net defeeneenue decreased by approximately $1.4 milbor7,9.8%, to approximately
$0.4 million from approximately $1.8 million duririge same period in 2010. For the six months eddeé 30, 2011, our net deferred reve
consisted of approximately $0.2 million attributald our distributor in Israel, approximately $illion to our distributor in Brazil,
approximately $0.05 million to our distributor italy, and approximately $0.1 million to our distrtbr in Poland, offset by approximately $0.1
million deferred for a shipment to our distributnrindia. For the first half of 2010, net defermesdrenue of approximately $1.8 million was
comprised mainly of shipments from 2008 and 2008utodistributor in Poland of approximately $1.1lion, our distributor in Brazil of
approximately $0.4 million, to our distributor imi $anka of approximately $0.1 million and apprositaly $0.2 million to miscellaneous
distributors.

For the six months ended June 30, 2011, total gm&sue increased by approximately $1.15 millar93.0%, to approximately $2
million from approximately $1.2 million during tteame period in 2010. This increase in gross revenmminly attributable to the first time
shipment of approximately $1.2 million to our distitor in India during the first half of 2011, amcrease of approximately $0.1 million of
gross revenue to our distributor in Spain, an iaseeof approximately $0.1 million of gross revetmeur new distributor in the Netherlands
increase of approximately $0.1 million of grossemuwe to our distributor in Argentina, an increasapproximately $0.1 million of gross
revenue to our distributor in Columbia and appraatety $0.1 million of gross revenue to our disttdrun Israel. This increase was partially
offset by a decrease of approximately $0.4 milliogross revenue to our distributor in Poland, erelase of approximately $0.2 million in
gross revenue to our distributor in Pakistan, aetese of approximately $0.1 million in gross revetour distributor in Kazakhstan, and a
decrease of approximately $0.1 million in grosserawe to our distributor in Italy. We also shipgedl recognized gross revenue for
approximately $0.2 million more from our remainidigtributors during the six months ended June 8@12as compared to the same period in
2010.
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Gross Profit. For the six months ended June 30, 2011, gras# frevenue less cost of revenues) decreasedzippately 0.2%, or
approximately $2,000, to approximately $1.187 miillfrom approximately $1.189 million during the saperiod in 2010. Gross margin
increased from 39.6% in the six months ended JON@@LO to 43.5% in the six months ended June @D1.2We were able to improve our
gross margin in spite of our decrease in revengaus®e of reduced production cost per stent driyegcbnomies of scale. For the six months
ended June 30, 2011, our average selling pricetpat recognized in revenue was $555, and we réegjthe sale of 4,915 stents, compared
to an average price of $672 per stent and 4,4T@sstecognized in revenue for the same period i02@ur production cost per stent
decreased from an average of $406 per stent resegyini revenue for the six months ended June 30) &9an average of $313 per stent for
the same period in 2011. The higher price pett $terthe six months ended June 30, 2010 was &ffidoy the price of stents sold in 2008 and
2009 to one of our Europeans distributors in Ewvben the Euro was much stronger than the U.Sadalt an average price of $997 when
translated to U.S. dollars.

Research and Development Expens®r the six months ended June 30, 2011, reseatidevelopment expense increased 41.4% to
approximately $1.1 million from approximately $0rllion during the same period in 2010. The inceeiscost resulted primarily from higher
clinical trial expenses of approximately $0.5 noitlj attributable mainly to the FDA clinical trisgproximately $0.4 million) and the Master
Trial (approximately $0.1 million), offset by appimately $0.1 million of development cost for MGda&rime in the first six months of 2010
and approximately $0.1 million of lower share basethpensation expense in the three months ended3lyr2011. Research and developr
expense as a percentage of revenue increasedlf 46r. the six months ended June 30, 2011 from%5t7the same period of 2010.

Selling and Marketing ExpenseFor the six months ended June 30, 2011, sddlinimarketing expense increased 64.1% to
approximately $1.0 million, from approximately $0r6llion during the same period in 2010. The irse in cost resulted primarily from
approximately $0.2 million of additional share basenpensation, approximately $0.1 million of comsioss pertaining to our first time
shipment of approximately $1.2 million to our distrtor in India, and approximately $0.1 million additional salaries and related expenses of
newly hired sales personnel as we expand our aatasties worldwide. Selling and marketing expeasea percentage of revenue increased to
38.3% in 2011 from 21.2% in 2010.

General and Administrative Expensé-or the six months ended June 30, 2011, geaathhdministrative expense increased 115.0%
to approximately $2.4 million from $1.1 million dng the same period in 2010. The increase in @sstlted primarily from an increase in le
and litigation expense of approximately $0.6 milligrimarily due to a provision for the Companyttgntial loss regarding a threatened
lawsuit from a finder claiming a future successded commissions for assistance in finding the Camyjs distributor in Brazil), an increase
investor related activities of approximately $0.8lion (due to the Company having been public dgrihe six months ended June 30, 2011
not during the same period in 2010), an increaseirel expense of approximately $0.2 million (imed in connection with the share excha
transactions), an increase of approximately $0IRamiin salary expenses (due to an increase iragtfucture to accommodate and comply
SEC standards and reporting), and an increasepobgimately $0.1 million in accounting fees (aletated to compliance with SEC standar
offset by a non-recurring bad debt provision indn@ount of approximately $0.1 million made durthg first half of 2010 mainly related to
shipments to our Bulgarian distributor. General administrative expense as a percentage of revianteased to 87.7% in 2011 from 37.0%
in 2010.

Financial Expenses For the six months ended June 30, 2011, finhegj@ense increased to approximately $0.8 millimmf $29,000
during the same period in 2010. The increase ires@ resulted primarily from a one-time financigtense recording of approximately $0.6
million in the first quarter of 2011 pertainingttee revaluation of the outstanding convertible laafair value prior to redemption and
approximately $0.2 million for the favorable impactexchange rate differences for the six montttedrdune 30, 2010 that did not reoccur
during the six months ended June 30, 2011. Fimaegpense as a percentage of revenue decrea®8®% in 2011, from 1.0% in 2010.

Tax Expenses Tax expense remained relatively flat at $20,f20Qhe six months ended June 30, 2011, as cordpar$30,000
during the same period in 2010. Our expenses fumire taxes reflect primarily the tax liability dieepotential tax exposure.

Net Loss Our net loss increased approximately $2.8 nmijlior 198.1%, to $4.2 million for the six monthsled June 30, 2011 from
$1.4 million during the same period in 2010. Theréase in net loss resulted primarily from an iasgein operating expenses of approximately
$2.0 million (see above for explanations) and amgase of approximately $0.8 million in financiapenses (see above for explanation).

Backlog. Our order backlog as of June 30, 2011 was ajipaiely $0.9 million.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

General. At June 30, 2011, we had cash and cash equisadéapproximately $8.1 million, as compared to6h@illion at December
31, 2010. The increase is attributable primarilyh® private placement conducted in conjunctior e reverse merger on March 31, 2011.
We have historically met our cash needs througbnabination of issuance of new shares, borrowingyi¢ies and sales. Our cash requirements
are generally for product development, clinicallsj marketing and sales activities, finance amdiaidtrative cost, capital expenditures and
overall working capital.

Cash used in our operating activities was approbelp&1.8 million for the six months ended June 3011, and approximately $1.2
million for the same period in 2010. The principsdsons for the decrease include a net loss obzippately $4.1 million offset
by approximately $1.0 million in non-cash sharedzhcompensation, approximately $0.6 million in4gash financial expenses related to the
revaluation of the convertible loan and approxirya$®.6 million increase in working capital.

We used cash in investing activities of approxirya$®.1 million during the six months ended June3ML1, compared to
approximately $24,000 of cash provided by investintivities during the same period in 2010. Thagpal reason for the decrease in cash
flow from investing activities was an increasea@stricted cash of approximately $93,000 ($50,009tda requirement pertaining to our
outstanding loan, which was cancelled subsequehirie 30, 2011, and $43,000 as a guarantee faredit limit on our corporate credit card).

Cash flow generated from financing activities wppraximately $9.4 million for the six months endrahe 30, 2011, and $1.2 million
for the same period in 2010. The principal redsonhe increase in cash flow from financing adtes during 2011 was the private placement
conducted in conjunction with the reverse mergeMainch 31, 2011 and other private equity issuapcies to and after the reverse merger in
the aggregate amount of approximately $10.6 millaffset by the repayment of the noanverted portion of the convertible loan in theoamt
of approximately $1.0 million and the partial repant of our long-term loan in the amount of appmedely $0.2 million.

As of June 30, 2011, our current assets exceedeentliabilities by 2.8 times. Current assets @ased approximately $6.9 million
during 2011, mainly due to cash from the privagecpments in 2011, while current liabilities decesblsy $25,000 during the same period. ,
result, our working capital surplus increased bgrapimately $7.0 million to approximately $6.9 ol during the first quarter of 2011.

Credit Facilities. As of June 30, 2011, we had a long term loahénamount of approximately $0.3 million bearintehest at the
three month US$ libor rate plus 4% per annum. Bha s payable in eight quarterly installments g period of three years that begin in
April 2010 and ends in January 2012. Accordintheoloan agreement, in case of an “exit transagtiwa will be required to pay to the bank
an additional $0.25 million if the sum receivedaifiliquidity event” or the value of the companyan “IPO” is higher than $100 million.

Convertible Loan Prior to June 30, 2011, we had a convertible lwdh an aggregate principal amount outstandingppfroximately
$1.58 million that bore 8% interest. Following tleeerse merger on March 31, 2011, $580,000 plasiad interest converted into shares of
the Company. The remaining principle in the amair#1.0 million was repayed on May 15, 2011.

Sales of StockFor the six months ended June 30, 2011, we issnegjgregate of 8,321,360 ordinary shares an@ 361 warrants
for gross proceeds of approximately $12,246 thodsa

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet transactions, arraagesnobligations (including contingent obligatiprar other relationships with

unconsolidated entities or other persons that havmay have, a material effect on our financialditon, changes in financial condition,
revenues or expenses, results of operations, ltguichpital expenditures or capital resources.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”)issued amendments to the accounting and disclésurevenue
recognition. These amendments, effective for figealrs beginning on or after June 15, 2010 (eadpton is permitted), modify the criteria
for recognizing revenue in multiple element arrangets and require companies to develop a bestastiofi the selling price to separate
deliverables and allocate arrangement considerasorg the relative selling price method. Addititywethe amendments eliminate the residual
method for allocating arrangement consideratioh® Company does not expect the standard to haweriaiaffect on its consolidated
financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB updated the “Fair Vallmadirements Disclosured/ore specifically, this update will require (a) antity
to disclose separately the amounts of significeamdfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2 fair valuasueements and to describe the reasons for
the transfers; and (b) information about purchas&les, issuances and settlements to be preseqmadhtely (i.e. present the activity on a gross
basis rather than net) in the reconciliation far falue measurements using significant unobseevatguts (Level 3 inputs). This update
clarifies existing disclosure requirements for el of disaggregation used for classes of asgetdiabilities measured at fair value, and
require disclosures about the valuation technigunekinputs used to measure fair value for bothrrergand nonrecurring fair value
measurements using Level 2 and Level 3 inputs. Whidbecome effective as of the first interim armaual reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2009, except for the gross presentafithe Level 3 roll forward information, which fiequired for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2010 and for inteeporting periods within those years. The adoptiohe new guidance did not have a
material impact on the Company's consolidated firdrstatements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued amended guidance &atbdure requirements for fair value measurementsese changes will be
effective January 1, 2012 on a prospective basidy Bpplication is not permitted. These amendsian¢ not expected to have a material
impact to the consolidated financial results.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Management’s Conclusions Regarding Effectiveness Blisclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2011, we conducted an evaluatioteiuthe supervision and participation of managermattiding our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, of the effeatiness of our disclosure controls and proceduseddfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15
(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedh There are inherent limitations to the effemtiess of any system of disclosure controls
and procedures. Accordingly, even effective diamlesontrols and procedures can only provide restsderassurance of achieving their control
objectives.

Based upon this evaluation, our chief executiveceffand chief financial officer concluded that @iisclosure controls and procedures
are effective at the reasonable assurance lewal ame 30, 2011.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the first quarter thaaterially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are numerous and varied risks, known and onvknthat may prevent us from achieving our godeu should carefully
consider the risks described below and the findrama other information included in this Form 10-&hd our registration statement on Form
S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange Comarisen June 16, 2011, as may be amended. If athedbllowing risks, or any other risks

not described below, actually occur, it is likeyat our business, financial condition, and/or ogérg results could be materially adversely
affected, and actual outcomes may vary materiadignfthose included in this Form 10-Q.
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Risks Related to Our Business

We expect to derive our revenue from sales of ousivard ™ stent products and other products we may develtipve fail to generate
revenue from this source, our results of operatioasd the value of our business would be materialyd adversely affected.

We expect our revenue to be generated from salesrdfiGuard™ stent products and other products ag develop. Future sales of
these products, if any, will be subject to the igtcef regulatory approvals and commercial and rewncertainties that may be outside our
control. If we fail to generate such revenues,results of operations and the value of our busiaesl securities could be materially and
adversely affected.

Several factors could limit the successful comnaiation of our products, including:
» limited market acceptance or familiarity among @at$, physicians, medical centers and -party purchaser:
« inadequate reimbursement for our products by théndy payors;
« ourinability to develop a sales force or distridmstcapable of effectively marketing our produ
- our inability to manufacture and supply a suffitiamount of products to meet market demands;
» the number, relative effectiveness, and cost ofpmting products that may enter the market;
« aproduct recall or voluntary market withdrawal dag@roduct defects or product enhancements andficetbns.

The foregoing factors could also limit the succalssbmmercialization by any future licensee of protd incorporating our
technology, which would ultimately affect our resubf operations.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain intellectli@roperty protection covering our products, othersay be able to make, use or sell ¢
products, which would adversely affect our reven

Our ability to protect our products from unauthedzor infringing use by third parties depends satislly on our ability to obtain at
maintain valid and enforceable patents. Due tdvawp legal standards relating to the patentahiltlidity and enforceability of patents
covering medical devices and pharmaceutical ineastand the scope of claims made under these patemtability to enforce patents is
uncertain and involves complex legal and factuastjons. Accordingly, rights under any of our pegdpatents may not provide us with
commercially meaningful protection for our productsafford a commercial advantage against our coitope or their competitive products or
processes. In addition, patents may not be isBoadany pending or future patent applications odvheg or licensed to us, and moreover,
patents that may be issued to us in the future moaye valid or enforceable. Further, even ifdaind enforceable, our patents may not be
sufficiently broad to prevent others from marketprgducts like ours, despite our patent rights.

The validity of our patent claims depends, in pantwhether prior art references exist that desavibrender obvious our inventions
of the filing date of our patent applications. Viday not have identified all prior art, such as W&d foreign patents or published applications
or published scientific literature, that could ahedy affect the patentability of our pending pat@pplications. For example, patent
applications in the U.S. are maintained in confaefor up to 18 months after their filing. In sopeses, however, patent applications remain
confidential in the U.S. Patent and Trademark @ffar the entire time prior to issuance as a Uafemt. Patent applications filed in countries
outside the U.S. are not typically published uatileast 18 months from their first filing dateim8arly, publication of discoveries in the
scientific or patent literature often lags behitual discoveries. Therefore, we cannot be cettaihwe were the first to invent, or the first to
file patent applications relating to, our stentitealogies. In the event that a third party hae éiled a U.S. patent application covering our
stents or a similar invention, we may have to pgoéite in an adversarial proceeding, known as tanference, declared by the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office to determine priority of inventionthe U.S. It is possible that we may be unsssitg in the interference, resulting in a loss
of some portion or all of our position in the U.Bhe laws of some foreign jurisdictions do not pabtintellectual property rights to the same
degree as in the U.S., and many companies haveietered significant difficulties in protecting addfending such rights in foreign
jurisdictions. If we encounter such difficultiesare otherwise precluded from effectively protegtour intellectual property rights in forei
jurisdictions, our business prospects could betankiglly harmed
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We may initiate litigation to enforce our paterghis on any patents issued on pending patent apipls, which may prompt
adversaries in such litigation to challenge thedigi, scope or enforceability of our patents.al€ourt decides that such patents are not valid,
not enforceable or of a limited scope, we may rerthe right to stop others from using our invamgi Also, even if our patents are
determined by a court to be valid and enforcedahky may not be sufficiently broad to prevent oshfieom marketing products similar to ours
or designing around our patents, despite our paigms, nor provide us with freedom to operatamymeded by the patent rights of others.

We also rely on trade secret protection to pratectinterests in proprietary know-how and for pisses for which patents are difficult
to obtain or enforce. We may not be able to ptatec trade secrets adequately. In addition, wear non-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with employees, consultants and otliBepéo protect, in part, trade secrets and gtheprietary technology. These agreements
may be breached and we may not have adequate esrfediany breach. Moreover, others may indepefyddevelop equivalent proprietary
information, and third parties may otherwise gainess to our trade secrets and proprietary knowleday disclosure of confidential data i
the public domain or to third parties could alloentpetitors to learn our trade secrets and usenfbenmiation in competition against us.

We have a history of net losses and may experignbgre losses

To date, we have experienced net losses. A submstpartion of the expenses associated with ounufecturing facilities are fixed in
nature (i.e., depreciation) and will reduce ourrafiag margin until such time, if ever, as we dokdo increase utilization of our capacity
through increased sales of our products. Theodirrials necessary to support our anticipatedvgravill be expensive and lengthy. In
addition, our strategic plan will require a sigo#it investment in clinical trials, product devetegmt and sales and marketing programs, which
may not result in the accelerated revenue grovahwie anticipate. As a result, there can be noraese that we will ever generate substantial
revenues or sustain profitability.

We have limited manufacturing capabilities and mafacturing personnel, and if our manufacturing fadties are unable to provide an
adequate supply of products, our growth could baited and our business could be harmed.

We currently manufacture our MGuard™ stent at aailities in Tel Aviv, Israel, and we have contetiwith QualiMed Innovative
Medizinprodukte GmbH, a German manufacturer, tisags production. If there were a disruption tr @xisting manufacturing facility, we
would have no other means of manufacturing our MGUastent until we were able to restore the martufagy capability at our facility or
develop alternative manufacturing facilities. & were unable to produce sufficient quantitieswofMGuard™ stent for use in our current and
planned clinical trials, or if our manufacturingopess yields substandard stents, our developmedrt@anmercialization efforts would be
delayed.

We currently have limited resources, facilities axgerience to commercially manufacture our prodactdidates. In order to prodi
our MGuard™ stent in the quantities that we anétapwill be required to meet anticipated market aed) we will need to increase, or “scale
up,” the production process by a significant facteer the current level of production. There ahhical challenges to scaling-up
manufacturing capacity, and developing commeraialesmanufacturing facilities will require the irstment of substantial funds and hiring
and retaining additional management and technieagnnel who have the necessary manufacturing iexger We may not successfully
complete any required scale-up in a timely mannat all. If unable to do so, we may not be ablproduce our MGuard™ stent in sufficient
guantities to meet the requirements for the lawfahe product or to meet future demand, if at #llwe develop and obtain regulatory
approval for our MGuard™ stent and are unable toufecture a sufficient supply of our MGuard™ stentr revenues, business and financial
prospects would be adversely affected. In addiifathe scaledip production process is not efficient or produstesits that do not meet qua
and other standards, our future gross margins reelngé. Also, our current and planned personnetesys, procedures and controls may n
adequate to support our anticipated growth. Ifweeunable to manage our growth effectively, owirtess could be harmed.

Additionally, any damage to or destruction of oel Aviv facilities or its equipment, prolonged pawaitage or contamination at our
facility would significantly impair our ability tproduce MGuard™ stents.

Finally, the production of our MGuard™ stent mustur in a highly controlled, clean environment tmimize particles and other
yield and qualit-limiting contaminants. In spite of stringent gtiatontrols, weaknesses in process control or eifmapurities in materials
may cause a substantial percentage of defectivdupt®in a lot. If we are unable to maintain gfent quality controls, or if contamination
problems arise, our clinical development and conemézation efforts could be delayed, which woulttin our business and results of
operations.
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Clinical trials necessary to support a prearket approval application will be lengthy and expsive and will require the enrollment of a lar
number of patients, and suitable patients may b#idilt to identify and recruit. Any such delay diilure of clinical trials could prevent us
from commercializing our stent products, which walinaterially and adversely affect our results ofayptions and the value of oL
business.

Clinical trials necessary to support a pnarket approval application to the U.S. Food andgDkdministration for our MGuard™ ste
will be expensive and will require the enrollmehtadarge number of patients, and suitable patieratg be difficult to identify and recruit,
which may cause a delay in the development and ecialization of our product candidates. Clinitélls supporting a pre-market approval
applications for the Cypher stent and the Taxug&sg® stent, which were approved by the U.S. Faddaug Administration and are
currently marketed, involved patient populationgpproximately 1,000 and 1,300, respectively, af@-anonth follow up period. In some
trials, a greater number of patients and a longéwvi up period may be required. The U.S. Food Bney Administration may require us to
submit data on a greater number of patients oafonger follow-up period than those for pre-maidgproval applications for the Cypher stent
and the Taxus Express2 stent. Patient enrollnmetitriical trials and the ability to successfullynaplete patient follow-up depends on many
factors, including the size of the patient popualatithe nature of the trial protocol, the proximifiypatients to clinical sites, the eligibility
criteria for the clinical trial and patient compiize. For example, patients may be discouraged é&mmolling in our clinical trials if the trial
protocol requires them to undergo extensive pestttnent procedures or follow-up to assess theysaifet efficacy of our products, or they
may be persuaded to participate in contemporanginisal trials of competitive products. In additi, patients participating in our clinical
trials may die before completion of the trial offsuadverse medical events unrelated to or relatexlir products. Delays in patient enrollr
or failure of patients to continue to participateai clinical trial may cause an increase in costsdelays or result in the failure of the clinical
trial.

In addition, the length of time required to comelelinical trials for pharmaceutical and medicalide products varies substantially
according to the degree of regulation and the tgpmplexity, novelty and intended use of a prodant] can continue for several years and
millions of dollars. The commencement and comptetf clinical trials for our products under dey@ioent may be delayed by many factors,
including governmental or regulatory delays andhges in regulatory requirements, policy and guigdior our inability or the inability of a1
potential licensee to manufacture or obtain froidtparties materials sufficient for use in preal studies and clinical trials.

Physicians may not widely adopt the MGuard™ stemiess they determine, based on experience, -term clinical data and published peer
reviewed journal articles, that the use of the MG stent provides a safe and effective alternatisenther existing treatments for
coronary artery disease.

We believe that physicians will not widely adope tGuard™ stent unless they determine, based ogriexge, long-term clinical
data and published peer reviewed journal artithest,the use of our MGuard™ stent provides a safieeffective alternative to other existing
treatments for coronary artery disease, includmgieary artery bypass grafting balloon angioplastyre-metal stents and other drug-eluting
stents, provided by Johnson & Johnson, Boston 8fieeGorporation, Medtronic Inc., Abbott Laboraies and others.

We cannot provide any assurance that the datactedlérom our current and planned clinical trialf be sufficient to demonstrate
that the MGuard™ stents are an attractive alteraat other procedures. If we fail to demonsteafety and efficacy that is at least
comparable to other drug-eluting stents or bareahsténts that have received regulatory approvéithat are available on the market, our
ability to successfully market the MGuard™ sterit b significantly limited. Even if the data cedited from clinical studies or clinical
experience indicate positive results, each physigiactual experience with our MGuard™ stent wélhyw. Clinical trials conducted with the
MGuard™ stent have involved procedures performephysicians who are technically proficient and lsigh-volume stent
users. Consequently, both short-term and long-tesults reported in these clinical trials may igami§icantly more favorable than typical
results of practicing physicians, which could negdy affect rates of adoptions of our productse ®so believe that published peer-reviewed
journal articles and recommendations and suppoitfiyential physicians regarding our MGuard™ steilt be important for marke
acceptance and adoption, and we cannot assurdngbwée will receive these recommendations and stipmothat supportive articles will be
published.

In addition, currently, physicians consider drugtielg stents to be the industry standard for treatnof coronary artery

disease. While we believe that the MGuard™ steatsafe and effective alternative, it is not ayeluting stent, which may further hinder its
support and adoption by physicians.
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Our products are based on a new technology, andharee only limited experience in regulatory affairghich may affect our ability or the
time required to navigate complex regulatory regeinents and obtain necessary regulatory approvdlsuch approvals are received at
all. Regulatory delays or denials may increase aasts, cause us to lose revenue and materially addersely affect our results of
operations and the value of our business.

Because our products are new and long-term suateasures have not been completely validated, regylagencies, including the
U.S. Food and Drug Administration, may take a gigant amount of time in evaluating product appi@aplications. For example, there are
currently several methods of measuring restenoslsage do not know which of these metrics, or coratim of these metrics, will be
considered appropriate by the U.S. Food and DrugiAidtration for evaluating the clinical efficacy stents. Treatments may exhibit a
favorable measure using one of these metrics anshfavorable measure using another metric. Anyighan the accepted metrics may result
in reconfiguration of, and delays in, our clinitahls. Additionally, we have only limited expeniee in filing and prosecuting the applications
necessary to gain regulatory approvals, and onicali, regulatory and quality assurance personmetarrently composed of only 3
employees. As a result, we may experience a legglatory process in connection with obtaining tatury approvals for our products.

In addition, the products we and any potentialigees license, develop, manufacture and marksuaject to complex regulatory
requirements, particularly in the U.S., Europe Asdh, which can be costly and tineensuming. There can be no assurance that sucbvaty
will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. Fh@tmore, there can be no assurance of continuegdlizome with all regulatory requirements
necessary for the manufacture, marketing and sdle@roducts we will offer in each market wheuets products are expected to be sold, or
that products we have commercialized will contitmeomply with applicable regulatory requiremenifsa government regulatory agency w
to conclude that we were not in compliance withligpple laws or regulations, the agency could togti proceedings to detain or seize our
products, issue a recall, impose operating rektrist enjoin future violations and assess civil anichinal penalties against us, our officers or
employees and could recommend criminal prosecutiamthermore, regulators may proceed to ban,qurast the recall, repair, replacemen
refund of the cost of, any device manufacturedott by us. Furthermore, there can be no assuithat@ll necessary regulatory approvals
be obtained for the manufacture, marketing andisad@y market of any new product developed or &mgt potential licensee will develop
using our licensed technology.

Even if our products are approved by regulatory hatities, if we or our suppliers fail to comply viitongoing regulatory requirements, or
we experience unanticipated problems with our prati these products could be subject to restricsiam withdrawal from the market.

Any product for which we obtain marketing approwvathe U.S., along with the manufacturing procespest-approval clinical data
and promotional activities for such product, wil ubject to continual review and periodic inspediby the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration and other regulatory bodies. Intjgaitar, we and our suppliers will be required tonply with the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration’s Quality System Regulation for thianufacture of our MGuard™ stent, which coversnigghods and documentation of the
design, testing, production, control, quality assge, labeling, packaging, storage and shippirangfproduct for which we obtain marketing
approval in the U.S. The U.S. Food and Drug Adstiation enforces the Quality System Regulationigh unannounced inspections. We
and our third-party manufacturers and supplierehat yet been inspected by the U.S. Food and Bdmginistration and will have to
successfully complete such inspections before weive U.S. regulatory approval for our productgilife by us or one of our suppliers to
comply with statutes and regulations administengthke U.S. Food and Drug Administration and ottegyutatory bodies, or failure to take
adequate response to any observations, could iasalhong other things, any of the following erfEment actions:

« warning letters or untitled letter

« fines and civil penalties;

« Unanticipated expenditure

- delays in approving, or refusal to approve, oudpuais;

» withdrawal or suspension of approval by the U.Sd~and Drug Administration or other regulatory hesj

« product recall or seizure;
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- orders for physician notification or device repaéplacement or refund;
« interruption of productior

o Operating restrictions;

« injunctions; anc

« criminal prosecution.

If any of these actions were to occur, it couldnhaur reputation and could cause our product saidrofitability to
suffer. Furthermore, key component suppliers maycarrently be or may not continue to be in coaupdie with applicable regulatory
requirements.

Even if regulatory approval of a product is grantethe U.S., the approval may be subject to litiotes on the indicated uses for
which the product may be marketed. If the U.S.d=and Drug Administration determines that our préoral materials, training or other
activities constitutes promotion of an unapproved, it could request that we cease or modify ainitng or promotional materials or subject
us to regulatory enforcement actions. It is algssjble that other federal, state or foreign erdiorent authorities might take action if they
consider our training or other promotional matarial constitute promotion of an unapproved use¢khbuld result in significant fines or
penalties under other statutory authorities, suclaas prohibiting false claims for reimbursement.

Moreover, any modification to a device that hasinead U.S. Food and Drug Administration approvatttould significantly affect it
safety or effectiveness, or that would constituteagor change in its intended use, design or matuifa, requires a new approval from the |
Food and Drug Administration. If the U.S. Food &rdig Administration disagrees with any determioatby us that new approval is not
required, we may be required to cease marketirg ecall the modified product until approval igaibed. In addition, we could also be
subject to significant regulatory fines or penaltie

Additionally, we may be required to conduct cogtbst-market testing and surveillance to monitordhafety or efficacy of our
products, and we will be required to report advengents and malfunctions related to our produttger discovery of previously unknown
problems with our products, including unanticipaseiderse events or adverse events of unanticigatestity or frequency, manufacturing
problems, or failure to comply with regulatory régments, such as Quality System Regulation, msyltrén restrictions on such products or
manufacturing processes, withdrawal of the prodfrots the market, voluntary or mandatory recalise$, suspension of regulatory approvals,
product seizures, injunctions or the impositiortiefl or criminal penalties.

Further, healthcare laws and regulations may chamgeficantly in the future. Any new healthcagevis or regulations may adversely
affect our business. A review of our businessduyrts or regulatory authorities may result in sedsination that could adversely affect our
operations. In addition, the healthcare regulatmyironment may change in a way that restrictsoperations.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jusdictions will prevent us from marketing our pragtts in such jurisdictions.

We intend to market our products in internationarkets. In order to market our products in otleeeifyn jurisdictions, we must
obtain separate regulatory approvals from thosainkd in the U.S. and Europe. The approval progedaries among countries and can
involve additional testing, and the time requireabtain approval may differ from that requirecbtmain CE Mark or U.S. Food and Drug
Administration approval. Foreign regulatory apmbprocesses may include all of the risks assatiatth obtaining CE Mark or U.S. Food
and Drug Administration approval in addition to ethisks. We may not obtain foreign regulatoryrappls on a timely basis, if at all. CE
Mark does not ensure approval by regulatory autiesrin other countries. We may not be able ®ffil requlatory approvals and may not
receive necessary approvals to commercialize adymts in certain markets.
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We operate in an intensely competitive and rapidhanging business environment, and there is a salpsial risk our products could
become obsolete or uncompetitive.

The medical device market is highly competitivee Wéompete with many medical service companiesdritis. and internationally in
connection with our current product and productdeurdevelopment. We face competition from numephamaceutical and biotechnology
companies in the therapeutics area, as well as etitiop from academic institutions, government ages and research institutions. When we
commercialize our products, we expect to face sgarompetition from Cordis Corporation, a subsid@rJohnson & Johnson, Boston
Scientific Corporation, Guidant, Medtronic, Incbiott Vascular Devices, Terumo and others. Mostusfcurrent and potential competitors,
including but not limited to those listed abovey&aand will continue to have, substantially greéiteancial, technological, research and
development, regulatory and clinical, manufacturimgrketing and sales, distribution and persoremdurces than we do. There can be no
assurance that we will have sufficient resourcesutwessfully commercialize our products, if anéwthey are approved for sale. The
worldwide market for stent products is charactetilag intensive development efforts and rapidly advag technology. Our future success
will depend largely upon our ability to anticipated keep pace with those developments and advafesent or future competitors could
develop alternative technologies, products or nietethat are more effective, easier to use or memnomical than what we or any potential
licensee develop. If our technologies or prodbetsome obsolete or uncompetitive, our related poslales and licensing revenue would
decrease. This would have a material adverseteffeour business, financial condition and resoftsperations.

We may become subject to claims by much larger batter capitalized competitors seeking to invaliglaur right to our intellectual
property.

Based on the prolific litigation that has occuriedhe stent industry and the fact that we may @osempetitive threat to some large
and well-capitalized companies that own or conpaikents relating to stents and their use, manukaetud delivery, we believe that it is
possible that one or more third parties will asagratent infringement claim against the manufactuse or sale of our MGuard™ stent based
on one or more of these patents. Itis also plestilat a lawsuit asserting patent infringement eehated claims may have already been filed
against us of which we are not aware. A numbehe$e patents are owned by very large and wellalg@d companies that are active
participants in the stent market. As the numberaofpetitors in the stent market grows, the polisilif patent infringement by us, or a patent
infringement claim against us, increases.

These companies have maintained their positiohémtarket by, among other things, establishindlédtial property rights relating
to their products and enforcing these rights agively against their competitors and new entramtts the market. All of the major companies
in the stent and related markets, including Bo&oientific Corporation, Johnson & Johnson and Medtr, Inc., have been repeatedly invol
in patent litigation relating to stents since aske1997. The stent and related markets have iexped rapid technological change and
obsolescence in the past, and our competitors $tameg incentives to stop or delay the introductibnew products and technologies. We
pose a competitive threat to many of the companiéise stent and related markets. Accordingly, ynainthese companies will have a strong
incentive to take steps, through patent litigatiotherwise, to prevent us from commercializing products.

If we fail to maintain or establish satisfactory agements with suppliers, we may not be able to obiaaterials that are necessary to deve
our products.

We depend on outside suppliers for certain raw rizdée These raw materials or components may s be available at our
standards or on acceptable terms, if at all, andhag be unable to locate alternative suppliersrodyce necessary materials or components or
our own.

Some of the components of our products are cuyr@ntlvided by only one vendor, or a single-soungepsier. We depend on
QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte GmbH, which roéactures the body of the stent, MeKo Laserstrabhtevlalbearbeitung for the laser
cutting of the stent, Natec Medical Ltd. for thely of catheters and Biogeneral Inc. for the fil¥e may have difficulty obtaining similar
components from other suppliers that are acceptalilee U.S. Food and Drug Administration or forerggulatory authorities if it becomes
necessary.

If we have to switch to a replacement supplier wileface additional regulatory delays and the intgtion of the manufacture and
delivery of our MGuard™ stent for an extended pebtime, which would delay completion of our atial trials or commercialization of our
products. In addition, we will be required to abtarior regulatory approval from the U.S. Food @&@rdig Administration or foreign regulatory
authorities to use different suppliers or composéinat may not be as safe or as effective. Aswatreegulatory approval of our products may
not be received on a timely basis or at all.

29




Table of Content
We may be exposed to product liability claims andurance may not be sufficient to cover these claim

We may be exposed to product liability claims basedhe use of any of our products, or productsrparating our licensed
technology, in clinical trials. We may also be eged to product liability claims based on the séleny such products following the receipt of
regulatory approval. Product liability claims cddde asserted directly by consumers, heedtte providers or others. We have obtained prt
liability insurance coverage; however such insueamay not provide full coverage for our future ia trials, products to be sold, and other
aspects of our business. We also have liabil#yiance for our ongoing clinical trial in Europ@surance coverage is becoming increasingly
expensive and we may not be able to maintain ctio@rerages, or expand our insurance coveragehada future clinical trials or the sale of
products incorporating our licensed technology a@frketing approval is obtained for such products, masonable cost or in sufficient amounts
to protect against losses due to product liabdityt all. A successful product liability claim series of claims brought against us could result
in judgments, fines, damages and liabilities tloatld have a material adverse effect on our busjriessicial condition and results of
operations. We may incur significant expense itigaing and defending these claims, even if theydt result in liability. Moreover, even if
no judgments, fines, damages or liabilities aredsgul on us, our reputation could suffer, which ddwslve a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We may implement a product recall or voluntary matkwithdrawal due to product defects or product emtements and modifications,
which would significantly increase our costs.

The manufacturing and marketing of our MGuard ™ tspeaducts involves an inherent risk that our preidumay prove to be
defective. In that event, we may voluntarily impkamha recall or market withdrawal or may be regliieedo so by a regulatory authority. A
recall of one of our products, or a similar prodongtnufactured by another manufacturer, could imgeigs of the products we market as a
result of confusion concerning the scope of thaltexr as a result of the damage to our reputdbomguality and safety.

The successful management of operations dependswumability to attract and retain talented personhe

We depend on the expertise of our senior manageamehtesearch personnel, including our chief exeeuwfficer, Ofir Paz, and
president, Asher Holzer, each of whom would bediff to replace. The loss of the services of ahgur senior management could
compromise our ability to achieve our objectivésirthermore, recruiting and retaining qualifiedgmemel will be crucial to future
success. There can be no assurance that we vébllbdo attract and retain necessary personnatceptable terms given the competition
among medical device, biotechnology, pharmaceutindlhealthcare companies, universities and nofitpesearch institutions for
experienced management, scientists, researchersades and marketing and manufacturing persorifiele are unable to attract, retain and
motivate our key personnel, our operations mayebpgrdized and our results of operations may benmfly and adversely affected.

We are an international business, and we are exmbt®various global and local risks that could haagematerial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate globally and develop and manufacturduymts in our research and manufacturing facilitlesiultiple
countries. Consequently, we face complex legalragdlatory requirements in multiple jurisdictiomghich may expose us to certain financial
and other risks. International sales and operatiwa subject to a variety of risks, including:

» foreign currency exchange rate fluctuatic

« greater difficulty in staffing and managing foreigperations;

« greater risk of uncollectible accoun

« longer collection cycles;

» logistical and communications challeng

« potential adverse changes in laws and regulat@gtiges, including export license requirementsleraarriers, tariffs and tax laws;
« changes in labor condition

« burdens and costs of compliance with a varietyoddifin laws;

« political and economic instability;
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« increases in duties and taxation;
- foreign tax laws and potential increased costscatanl with overlapping tax structure
« greater difficulty in protecting intellectual prapg and

« general economic and political conditions in thigseign markets

International markets are also affected by econgréssure to contain reimbursement levels andhezatlt costs. Profitability from
international operations may be limited by riskd ancertainties related to regional economic cdort regulatory and reimbursement
approvals, competing products, infrastructure dgwalent, intellectual property rights protection and ability to implement our overall
business strategy. We expect these risks wilkim®e as we pursue our strategy to expand operationsew geographic markets. We may
succeed in developing and implementing effectiviicjgs and strategies in each location where wealaonbusiness. Any failure to do so may
harm our business, results of operations and finhnondition.

If we fail to obtain an adequate level of reimbumsent for our products by third party payors, thengay be no commercially viable marke
for our product candidates or the markets may bechismaller than expectet

The availability and levels of reimbursement by gmmental and other third party payors affect tlaeket for our product
candidates. The efficacy, safety, performancecastieffectiveness of our product candidates and ofcamypeting products will determine 1
availability and level of reimbursement. Reimbungat and healthcare payment systems in interndtinagkets vary significantly by country,
and include both government sponsored healthcat@@vate insurance. To obtain reimbursement wirgy approval in some countries, we
may be required to produce clinical data, which imaplve one or more clinical trials, that compaties cost-effectiveness of our products to
other available therapies. We may not obtain rg8onal reimbursement or pricing approvals imgety manner, if at all. Our failure to
receive international reimbursement or pricing appts would negatively impact market acceptanceuofproducts in the international mark
in which those approvals are sought.

We believe that future reimbursement may be sulbjeictcreased restrictions both in the U.S. anidt@rnational markets. There is
increasing pressure by governments worldwide tdainrhealth care costs by limiting both the coveragd the level of reimbursement for
therapeutic products and by refusing, in some ¢asggsovide any coverage for products that haweboren approved by the relevant regulatory
agency. Future legislation, regulation or reimbuarent policies of third party payors may adversdigct the demand for our products
currently under development and limit our abilidysell our product candidates on a profitable balsisaddition, third party payors continually
attempt to contain or reduce the costs of healthbgrchallenging the prices charged for healthpavducts and services. If reimbursement for
our products is unavailable or limited in scopewrount or if pricing is set at unsatisfactory lesyeharket acceptance of our products would be
impaired and future revenues, if any, would be esblg affected.

In the U.S., our business could be significantly dmadversely affected by recent healthcare reformiséation and other administration an
legislative proposals.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act Hiedlth Care and Educational Reconciliation Actie U.S. were enacted into law
in March 2010. Certain provisions of these act$ mat be effective for a number of years and tregeemany programs and requirements for
which the details have not yet been fully estalelisbr consequences not fully understood, anduihédear what the full impacts will be from
the legislation. The legislation does levy a 28%ise tax on all U.S. medical device sales begmim 2013. If we commence sales of our
MGuard™ stent in the U.S., this new tax may mallgrand adversely affect our business and restilgperations. The legislation also focu
on a number of Medicare provisions aimed at imprg\juality and decreasing costs. It is uncertathia point what negative unintended
consequences these provisions will have on patieress to new technologies. The Medicare prowsiociude value-based payment
programs, increased funding of comparative effectdss research, reduced hospital payments forabeideadmissions and hospital acquired
conditions, and pilot programs to evaluate altévegtayment methodologies that promote care coatitin (such as bundled physician and
hospital payments). Additionally, the provisionslude a reduction in the annual rate of inflafionhospitals starting in 2011 and the
establishment of an independent payment advisoaydoto recommend ways of reducing the rate of gnawtMedicare spending. We cannot
predict what healthcare programs and regulatiofid@iultimately implemented at the federal or estigivel in the U.S., or the effect of any
future legislation or regulation. However, any rpes that lower reimbursements for our producteduce medical procedure volumes could
adversely affect our business and results of ojpesat
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Our strategic business plan may not produce theeimled growth in revenue and operating income.

Our strategies include making significant investteen sales and marketing programs to achieve tegnowth and margin
improvement targets. If we do not achieve the etguebenefits from these investments or othervdgied execute on our strategic initiatives,
we may not achieve the growth improvement we agetang and our results of operations may be adleedfected.

In addition, as part of our strategy for growth, may make acquisitions and enter into strategiarades such as joint ventures and
joint development agreements. However, we mayaaible to identify suitable acquisition candidatesnplete acquisitions or integr:
acquisitions successfully, and our strategic atie@nmay not prove to be successful. In this regamguisitions involve numerous risks,
including difficulties in the integration of the emations, technologies, services and productseoftiyuired companies and the diversion of
management’s attention from other business concekttbough our management will endeavor to evauhe risks inherent in any particular
transaction, there can be no assurance that wemsillerly ascertain all such risks. In additiorgusitions could result in the incurrence of
substantial additional indebtedness and other esgsear in potentially dilutive issuances of eqgsi#gurities. There can be no assurance that
difficulties encountered with acquisitions will noave a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of operations.

We may have violated Israeli securities law.

We may have violated section 15 of the Israeli Sigcuaw of 1968. Section 15 of the Israeli Setutiaw of 1968 requires the filing
of a prospectus with the Israel Security Authosibd the delivery thereof to purchasers in conneatith an offer or sale of securities to more
than 35 parties during any 12 month period. Wegaltlly issued securities to more than 35 investorisg certain 12-month periods ending in
October 2008. We filed an application for “No acti with the Israel Security Authority in conneatiwvith the foregoing on February 14,
2011. Members of our management met with the ISaeurity Authority on March 9, 2011 and submittesinplementary information
requested by the Israel Security Authority on Ma2éh2011. To date, the Israel Security Authoniy not provided any response to our
application. A failure to receive “No action” reficould expose us to fines in excess of $1 milaad could subject members of our
management during the period of the alleged viotetito fines, imprisonment, or prohibition fromseg as a senior officer of a reporting
company under the Israel Security Law.

We will need to raise additional capital to meetrdausiness requirements in the future and such capbiraising may be costly or difficult to
obtain and could dilute current stockholders’ owrsdrip interests.

We will need to raise additional capital in theuiwt, which may not be available on reasonable temas all. We recently raised
approximately $10,500,000 and expect that suchegms, together with our income, will be insuffidiém fully realize all of our business
objectives. For instance, we will need to raisditamhal funds to accomplish the following:

« pursuing growth opportunities, including more ragighansion

e acquiring complementary businesses;

« making capital improvements to improve our infrasture;

- hiring qualified management and key employees;

« developing new services, programming or prodt

« responding to competitive pressures;

« complying with regulatory requirements such asngeg and registration; and

« maintaining compliance with applicable lav

Any additional capital raised through the sale @ity or equity backed securities may dilute curigtockholders’ ownership
percentages and could also result in a decreabe imarket value of our equity securities.
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The terms of any securities issued by us in futaggtal transactions may be more favorable to mastors, and may include
preferences, superior voting rights and the issei@fievarrants or other derivative securities, whitdly have a further dilutive effect on the
holders of any of our securities then outstanding.

Furthermore, any additional debt or equity finagdihat we may need may not be available on ternwéble to us, or at all. If we
are unable to obtain such additional financing dimaly basis, we may have to curtail our developtaetivities and growth plans and/or be
forced to sell assets, perhaps on unfavorable texmish would have a material adverse effect onbusiness, financial condition and result
operations, and ultimately could be forced to digitme our operations and liquidate, in which eveisgt unlikely that stockholders would
receive any distribution on their shares. Furtivermay not be able to continue operating if wendbgenerate sufficient revenues from
operations needed to stay in business.

In addition, we may incur substantial costs in purg future capital financing, including investmdainking fees, legal fees,
accounting fees, securities law compliance feeastipg and distribution expenses and other cogfe may also be required to recognize non-
cash expenses in connection with certain securiteesssue, such as convertible notes and warrahish may adversely impact our financial
condition.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Our Common Stck

We are subject to financial reporting and other neigements for which our accounting, internal audand other management
systems and resources may not be adequately prep

On March 31, 2011, we became subject to reportimodher obligations under the Securities Exchakgeof 1934, as amended,
including the requirements of Section 404 of theb8aes-Oxley Act. Section 404 will require us tedoct an annual management assessment
of the effectiveness of our internal controls dfieancial reporting and to obtain a report by cutépendent auditors addressing these
assessments. These reporting and other obligatidindace significant demands on our managemaeatiaistrative, operational, internal au
and accounting resources. We anticipate that wieneld to upgrade our systems; implement additiinahcial and management controls,
reporting systems and procedures; implement amiat@udit function; and hire additional accountiimgernal audit and finance staff. If we i
unable to accomplish these objectives in a timaty effective fashion, our ability to comply with rdfinancial reporting requirements and other
rules that apply to reporting companies could beaimed. Any failure to maintain effective interreaintrols could have a material adverse e
on our business, operating results and stock pvioeeover, effective internal control is necesdarnus to provide reliable financial reports
prevent fraud. If we cannot provide reliable fingh reports or prevent fraud, we may not be ableménage our business as effectively as we
would if an effective control environment existathd our business and reputation with investors loealygarmed.

Because we became public by means (‘reverse merger,” we may not be able to attract gigention of major brokerage firms.

There may be risks associated with us becoming@thybugh a “reverse merger.” Securities analgétsajor brokerage firms may
not provide coverage of us since there is no incend brokerage firms to recommend the purchasmiofommon stock. No assurance can be
given that brokerage firms will, in the future, vtam conduct any secondary offerings on our behalf.

Our stock price may be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is likely tsotighly volatile and could fluctuate widely in pesmse to various factors, many of
which are beyond our control, including the follogi

- technological innovations or new products and sesr/by us or our competitors;
» additions or departures of key personi

« sales of our common stock, particularly under agistration statement for the purposes of sellmgather securities, including
management share

« limited availability of freely-tradable “unrestred” shares of our common stock to satisfy purclweders and demand;

« our ability to execute our business pl
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« operating results that fall below expectations;

» loss of any strategic relationsh

« industry developments;

- economic and other external factors;

« period-to-period fluctuations in our financial résu

In addition, the securities markets have from ttméme experienced significant price and volumetilations that are unrelated to the
operating performance of particular companies. &mearket fluctuations may also significantly afféred market price of our common stock.

We are subject to penny stock rules which will make shares of our common stock more difficult tells

We are subject to the Securities and Exchange Cesioni's “penny stock” rules since our shares of mam stock sell below $5.00
per share. Penny stocks generally are equity siesuwvith a per share price of less than $5.08e penny stock rules require broker-dealers to
deliver a standardized risk disclosure documerpigmed by the Securities and Exchange Commissidmptbaides information about penny
stocks and the nature and level of risks in thenpestock market. The broker-dealer must also pi@te customer with current bid and offer
quotations for the penny stock, the compensatich@broker-dealer and its salesperson, and moattdgunt statements showing the market
value of each penny stock held in the customersaat. The bid and offer quotations, and the bralealer and salesperson compensation
information must be given to the customer orallyrowriting prior to completing the transaction amdist be given to the customer in writing
before or with the customer’s confirmation.

In addition, the penny stock rules require thadiptd a transaction the broker-dealer must makgeaial written determination that the
penny stock is a suitable investment for the pusehand receive the purchaser’s written agreenoethettransaction. The penny stock rules
are burdensome and may reduce purchases of amingfend reduce the trading activity for shareswofcommon stock. As long as our
shares of common stock are subject to the penigk stes, the holders of such shares of commorkstay find it more difficult to sell their
securities.

There is, at present, only a limited market for oaommon stock and we cannot ensure that an activerket for our common stock
will ever develop or be sustained.

Our shares of common stock are thinly traded. ©ube illiquidity, the market price may not accets reflect our relative
value. There can be no assurance that there evdinbactive market for our shares of common stabkrenow or in the future. Because our
common stock is so thinly traded, a large blockhadres traded can lead to a dramatic fluctuatidhdrshare price and investors may not be
able to liquidate their investment in us at alkbn price that reflects the value of the businesaddition, our common stock currently trade:
the OTC Bulletin Board, which generally lacks thggildity, research coverage and institutional ingefollowing of a national securities
exchange like the NYSE Amex, the New York Stock laxtge or the Nasdaqg Stock Market. While we interlgst our common stock on a
national securities exchange once we satisfy tiialilisting standards for such an exchange, weetuly do not, and may not ever, satisfy <
initial listing standards.

Our board of directors can authorize the issuancipoeferred stock, which could diminish the rightsf holders of our common stock, and
make a change of control of us more difficult evérit might benefit our stockholders.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue shafgreferred stock in one or more series anitthé voting powers, preferences
and other rights and limitations of the preferramtk. Accordingly, we may issue shares of prefestck with a preference over our common
stock with respect to dividends or distributionsligmidation or dissolution, or that may otherwesdversely affect the voting or other rights of
the holders of common stock. Issuances of prefesteck, depending upon the rights, preferenceslasinations of the preferred stock, may
have the effect of delaying, deterring or prevemainchange of control, even if that change of @dmhight benefit our stockholders.
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Offers or availability for sale of a substantial maber of shares of our common stock may cause thiegoof our common stock to decline.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our comstock in the public market could harm the mapkete of our common stock a
make it more difficult for us to raise funds thrauigiture offerings of common stock. In additiohgur stockholders sell substantial amount
our common stock in the public market, upon theration of any statutory holding period under R, upon the expiration of lock-up
periods applicable to outstanding shares, or uperexercise of outstanding options or warrantsputid create a circumstance commonly
referred to as an “overhang” in anticipation of eththe market price of our common stock could fEfle existence of an overhang, whether or
not sales have occurred or are occurring, couldlralske it more difficult for us to raise additioffimlancing through the sale of equity or
equity-related securities in the future at a timd price that we deem reasonable or appropriate.

We do not expect to pay dividends in the future.aAesult, any return on investment may be limitedthe value of our common
stock.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on oanraon stock in the foreseeable future. The paymedividends on our common
stock will depend on our earnings, financial coioditand other business and economic factors abaard of directors may consider relevant.
If we do not pay dividends, our common stock mayelss valuable because a return on an investmentrinommon stock will only occur if
our stock price appreciates.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities ahUse of Proceeds

On April 18, 2011, we consummated a private placegmeth an investor pursuant to which we sold 668,6hares of our common
stock and a five-year warrant to purchase up tQZshares of common stock at an exercise pri¢d.80 per share for aggregate cash
proceeds of $1,000,000. The securities sold indfiexing were not registered under the Securietsof 1933, as amended, or the securities
laws of any state, and were offered and sold iameke on the exemption from registration underSbeurities Act of 1933, as amended,
provided by Section 4(2) and Regulation D (Rule)s@&der the Securities Act of 1933, as amendeds iflviestor was an accredited investor
(as defined by Rule 501 under the Securities AdS#3, as amended) at the time of the private plece.

On April 18, 2011, we consummated a private placegmgth two accredited investors (as defined byeda01 under the Securities ,
of 1933, as amended), pursuant to which we sold3383shares of our common stock and a five-yearamato purchase 141,667 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $1.80 peresliar aggregate cash proceeds of $425,000. Theises sold in this offering were not
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, asnalee, or the securities laws of any state, and wieeed and sold in reliance on the
exemption from registration under the Securities @c1933, as amended, provided by Section 4(2)Regulation D (Rule 506) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

On April 18, 2011, upon the consummation of thevabdescribed April 18, 2011 private placementsjssaed a five-year warrant to
purchase up to 57,000 shares of common stock exentise price of $1.80 per share to Palladium t8bpadvisors, LLC, our placement agent
in the April 18, 2011 private placements. The warm@as not registered under the Securities Act9&3] as amended, or the securities laws of
any state, and was offered and sold in relianctherexemption from registration afforded by Sect¢®) and Regulation D (Rule 506) under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and cavrepg provisions of state securities laws, whig@rept transactions by an issuer not
involving a public offering. Palladium Capital Adwars, LLC was an accredited investor (as defineRig 501 under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended) at the time of the private placém

On April 21, 2011, we consummated a private placeméth Mr. Reinder Hogeboom pursuant to which wkl<83,333 shares of our
common stock and a fivgear warrant to purchase 16,667 shares of our cangtozk at an exercise price of $1.80 per shareadgregate cas
proceeds of $50,000. The securities sold in tHisriofg were not registered under the Securitiesokdi933, as amended, or the securities laws
of any state, and were offered and sold in reliamcéhe exemption from registration under the SéesrAct of 1933, as amended, provided by
Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933 masraled. Reinder Hogeboom was not a “U.S. persanth@ term is defined in Rule 902 of
Regulation S) at the time of the private placement.

On January 4, 2011, we entered into a convertdzla hgreement with our distributer in Israel, ia #mount of $100,000. On June 1,
2011, we issued 81,161 shares of common stoclettetider upon conversion of the note. These gesuvere not registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the seearidiws of any state, and were offered and saldliance on the exemption from registration
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, geavby Regulation S under the Securities Act 0f3183 amended. The lender was not a
“U.S. person” (as that term is defined in Rule @Regulation S) at the time of the issuance.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

(@) Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

2.1* Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Deae2®@010, by and among InspireMD Ltd., SaguarsdReces, Inc., and the
Shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. that are signatberéto

2.2%** Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated Fgi2d4a2011

2.3%** Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Watech 25, 201:

3.1%* Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora

3.2%* Amended and Restated Byla

10.1** 2011 Umbrella Option Pla

10.2%** Form of Stock Option Award Agreeme

10.3*** Agreement of Conveyance, Transfer and AssignmeAsséts and Assumption of Obligations, dated ddarfch 31, 201!

10.4*** Stock Purchase Agreement, by and between InspirdMDand Lynn Briggs, dated as of March 31, 2

10.5%** Securities Purchase Agreement, dated ddaxich 31, 2011, by and among InspireMD, Inc. aadasn purchasers set forth
therein

10.6*** Form of $1.80 Warrar

10.7%* Form of $1.23 Warrar

10.8*** $1,250,000 Convertible Debenture, dated July 20028y and between InspireMD Ltd. and Genesis ASggtortunity
Fund, L.P.

10.9%** Unprotected Leasing Agreement, dated February @27,20y and between Block 7093 Parcel 162 CompaayRrivate
Company 510583156 and InspireMD L

10.10*** Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Jul§®@®), by and among InspireMD Ltd. and certain pasers set fort
therein

10.11%** Manufacturing Agreement, by and between InspireM®. Bnd QualiMed Innovative Medizinprodukte Gmbldtetl as o
September 11, 20C

10.12%** Development Agreement, by and betweerpireMD Ltd. and QualiMed Innovative MedizinprodukBanbH, dated as of
January 15, 200

10.13%** License Agreement, by and between Svelte Medicsle®ys, Inc. and InspireMD Ltd., dated as of Margh2D10

10.14%** Agreement, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Oéiz,Rlated as of April 1, 20(

10.15*** Amendment to the Employment Agreement, by and betwespireMD Ltd. and Ofir Paz, dated as of Octdhe2008

10.16%** Second Amendment to the Employment Agreetmby and between InspireMD Ltd. and Ofir Pazedas of March 28,
2011

10.17%** Personal Employment Agreement, by and betweenrilgd Ltd. and Asher Holzer, dated as of April 108(

10.18*** Amendment to the Employment Agreement, by and betwespireMD Ltd. and Asher Holzer, dated as of dha28, 2011
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10.19***

10.20***

10.21%**

10.22%**

10.23***

10.24%***

10.25%***
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31.2

32.1

32.2
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Personal Employment Agreement, by and betweenriigid Ltd. and Eli Bar, dated as of June 26, 2
Employment Agreement, by and between InspireMD atd Bary Oren, dated as of August 25, 2
Employment Agreement, by and between InspireMD atdl Craig Shore, dated as of November 28, !
Form of Indemnification Agreement between InspireMiiz. and each of the directors and executiveef§ thereo
Agreement with Bank Mizrahi Tefahot LTD. for a loaminspireMD Ltd. in the original principal amouwit $750,00(

Securities Purchase Agreement, datedfa&pril 18, 2011, by and among InspireMD, Inc. ar@dtain purchasers set forth
therein

Form of Warrant related to Securities Purchase é&mgent, dated as of April 18, 20

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated by reference to Saguaro ResouroesQurrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Séttes and Exchange Commission on

January 5, 2011

** Incorporated by reference to InspireMD, Inc. @nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securitiegl&xchange Commission on April 1,

2011

*** Incorporated by reference to InspireMD, Inc. €ent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on April 6,

2011

**** Incorporated by reference to InspireMD, Incu@ent Report on Form B-filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 22,

2011
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its ber
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INSPIREMD, INC.

Date: August 15, 2011 By: /s/ Ofir Paz

Name: Ofir Paz
Title:  Chief Executive Office

By: /s/ Craig Shor
Name: Craig Shore
Title:  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary a
Treasure
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2.1

2.2***

2.3***

3.1%*

3.2%*

10.1**

10.2%**

10.3%**

10.4%**

10.5%**

10.6***

10.7*%**

10.8***

10.9%**

10.10***

10.11%**

10.12%**

10.13***

10.14***

10.15***

10.16***

10.17***

10.18***

Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Decemb@020, by and among InspireMD Ltd., Saguaro Resaytoe., and th
Shareholders of InspireMD Ltd. that are signatteréto

Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, dated Fgti2da2011

Second Amendment to Share Exchange Agreement, Meteth 25, 201:

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpora

Amended and Restated Byla

2011 Umbrella Option Pla

Form of Stock Option Award Agreeme

Agreement of Conveyance, Transfer and AssignmeAseéts and Assumption of Obligations, dated ddarfch 31, 201:
Stock Purchase Agreement, by and between InspirdMDand Lynn Briggs, dated as of March 31, 2

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated addarich 31, 2011, by and among InspireMD, Inc. asdain purchasers set forth
therein

Form of $1.80 Warrar
Form of $1.23 Warrar

$1,250,000 Convertible Debenture, dated July 20028y and between InspireMD Ltd. and Genesis ASggiortunity
Fund, L.P.

Unprotected Leasing Agreement, dated Fabyl22, 2007, by and between Block 7093 Parceld@®pany Ltd. Private
Company 510583156 and InspireMD L

Securities Purchase Agreement, datedfasily 22, 2010, by and among InspireMD Ltd. andaia purchasers set forth
therein

Manufacturing Agreement, by and betweasdireMD Ltd. and QualiMed Innovative MedizinprodellGmbH, dated as of
September 11, 20C

Development Agreement, by and betweerpireviD Ltd. and QualiMed Innovative Medizinproduk®nbH, dated as of
January 15, 200

License Agreement, by and between Svelte MedicsieBys, Inc. and InspireMD Ltd., dated as of Margh2D10
Agreement, by and between InspireMD Ltd. and Oéiz,Rlated as of April 1, 20(
Amendment to the Employment Agreement, by and betwespireMD Ltd. and Ofir Paz, dated as of Octdhe2008

Second Amendment to the Employment Agreement, bybatween InspireMD Ltd. and Ofir Paz, dated allafch 28,
2011

Personal Employment Agreement, by and betweenriigd Ltd. and Asher Holzer, dated as of April 108!

Amendment to the Employment Agreement, by and betwespireMD Ltd. and Asher Holzer, dated as of dha28, 2011
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Personal Employment Agreement, by and betweenriigid Ltd. and Eli Bar, dated as of June 26, 2
Employment Agreement, by and between InspireMD atd Bary Oren, dated as of August 25, 2
Employment Agreement, by and between InspireMD atdl Craig Shore, dated as of November 28, !
Form of Indemnification Agreement between InspireMiiz. and each of the directors and executiveef§ thereo
Agreement with Bank Mizrahi Tefahot LTD. for a loaminspireMD Ltd. in the original principal amouwit $750,00(

Securities Purchase Agreement, datedfa&pril 18, 2011, by and among InspireMD, Inc. ar@dtain purchasers set forth
therein

Form of Warrant related to Securities Purchase é&mgent, dated as of April 18, 20

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated by reference to Saguaro ResouroesQurrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Séttes and Exchange Commission on

January 5, 2011

** Incorporated by reference to InspireMD, Inc. @nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securitiegl&xchange Commission on April 1,

2011

*** Incorporated by reference to InspireMD, Inc. €ent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on April 6,

2011

**** Incorporated by reference to InspireMD, Incu@ent Report on Form B-filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 22,

2011

40




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ofir Paz, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of InspireMD, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdt&te a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statdmemd other financial information included instiheport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presente:
this report;

4. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedure

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bgd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornratielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b. designed such internal control over finangglorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougrehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. disclosed in this report any change in thggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabrig that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

a. all significant deficiencies and material Wie@sses in the design or operation of internalrobover financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involveaniagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

August 15, 2011 /s/ Ofir Paz
Ofir Paz
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Craig Shore, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Forr-Q of InspireMD, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdt&te a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in lightdafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statdmemd other financial information included instiheport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presente:
this report;

4. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedure

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bgd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornratielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b. designed such internal control over finangglorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougrehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. disclosed in this report any change in thggsteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabrig that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions

a. all significant deficiencies and material Wie@sses in the design or operation of internalrobover financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involveaniagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

August 15, 2011 /s/ Craig Short

Craig Shore
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Form 10-@f)the quarter ended June 30, 2011 of InspireMDb, (the “Company”). |, Ofir Paz, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify thsased on my knowledge:

(1) The Form 1-Q fully complies with the requirements of Secti@(d) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeohd 934; anc
2 The information contained in the Form 10-Qlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations

of the Company as of and for the periods coveretigreport.

Date: August 15, 201 By: /s! Ofir Paz

Name: Ofir Paz
Title:  Chief Executive Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished asexhibit to the Form 10-Q pursuant to Item 6013B)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (satiens (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bittdé 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FArerQ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securleshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of Bompany, whether made before or after the datheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

This certification is furnished solely pursuanSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18.0. 1350) and accompanies
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Form 10-@f%)the quarter ended June 30, 2011 of InspireMb, (the “Company”). |, Craig Shore,
the Chief Financial Officer and Principal Finandidficer of the Company, certify that, based on knpwledge:

(1) The Form 1-Q fully complies with the requirements of Secti@(d) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeohd 934; anc
2 The information contained in the Form 10-Qlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations

of the Company as of and for the periods coveretigreport.

Date: August 15, 201 By: /sl Craig Shori

Name: Craig Shore
Title: Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished asexhibit to the Form 10-Q pursuant to Item 6013B)(of Regulation S-K and
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (satiens (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 6Bittdé 18, United States Code) and,
accordingly, is not being filed as part of the FArerQ for purposes of Section 18 of the Securleshange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
not incorporated by reference into any filing of Bompany, whether made before or after the datheegardless of any general
incorporation language in such filing.



